United City of Yorkville
651 Prairie Pointe Drive
Yorkville, I1linois 60560
Telephone: 630-553-4350
www.yvorkville.il.us

PLANNING AND ZONING

COMMISSION AGENDA
Wednesday, October 11, 2023
7:00 PM
Yorkville City Hall Council Chambers
651 Prairie Pointe Drive

Meeting Called to Order: 7:00 p.m.

Roll Call:

Previous meeting minutes: September 13, 2023

Citizen’s Comments

Public Hearings

1.

PZC 2023-08 Ali Bukhres, on behalf of QuikTrip Corporation, petitioner/contract purchaser, has
filed an application with the United City of Yorkville, Kendall County, Illinois requesting special use
permit authorization for a gasoline service station with accessory convenience store, pursuant to
Section 10-6-0 of the Yorkville City Code. The real property is approximately 5.51 acres and is
located at the northeast corner of State Route 47 (Bridge Street) and State Route 71 (Stagecoach
Trail) intersection.

Unfinished Business

New Business

1.

PZC 2023-08 Ali Bukhres, on behalf of QuikTrip Corporation, petitioner/contract purchaser, has
filed an application with the United City of Yorkville, Kendall County, Illinois requesting special use
permit authorization for a gasoline service station with accessory convenience store, pursuant to
Section 10-6-0 of the Yorkville City Code. The real property is approximately 5.51 acres and is
located at the northeast corner of State Route 47 (Bridge Street) and State Route 71 (Stagecoach
Trail) intersection.

Action Item:
Special Use

PZC 2023-12 Alexander L. Berman, on behalf of Kendall Holdings I, LLC, petitioner, is seeking
final plat of resubdivision approval for Lots 4 & 5 of the Kendall Marketplace Commercial
Development. The commercial outlots, consisting of approximately 3 acres, are generally located at
the northwest corner of US Route 34 and Isabel Drive within the larger retail development.

Action Item:
Final Plat



Additional Business

1. City Council Action Updates

a.

Adjournment

PZC 2023-09 United City of Yorkville has filed an Application for numerous amendments to
the existing Yorkville City Code of Ordinances to adopt a new Unified Development
Ordinance, including changes to the Zoning District Map, pursuant to section 11-13-14 of the
[llinois Municipal Code (65 ILCS 5/11-13-14) and Section 10-4-10 of the Yorkville Zoning
Ordinance. The proposed amendments relate to the existing Title 10 — Zoning, Title 11-
Subdivision Control, and the following chapters of Title 8§ — Buildings Regulations: Chapter 7
- Stormwater and Flooding Regulations, Chapter 12 — Landscape Ordinance and Chapter 15 —
Appearance Code of the Yorkville City Code.

Action Item
Text & Map Amendment

PZC 2023-10 United City of Yorkville, Kendall County, Illinois, petitioner, is proposing a
text amendment to Chapter 6: Permitted and Special Uses in the Zoning Ordinance to identify
“data center”, “refrigerated warehouse (cold storage)”, and “battery uses” as permitted uses
within the M-1 Limited Manufacturing and M-2 General Manufacturing districts. This text
amendment will provide definitions for the establishment and operation of such uses in these
zoning districts. Additionally, an amendment to Table 10.16.03 in Chapter 16: Off-Street

Parking and Loading in the Zoning Ordinance related to the uses is proposed.

Action Item
Text Amendment

PZC 2023-14 Troy M. Williams and Ashley L. Rusch, are requesting approval of a Plat of
Vacation to vacate the public easements between two (2) parcels (Lots 100 and 101) within
the Whitetail Ridge subdivision. The real property is located at 7557 and 7583 Clubhouse
Drive in unincorporated Kendall County.

Action Item
1.5 Mile Review



DRAFT

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION
City Council Chambers
651 Prairie Pointe Drive, Yorkville, IL
Wednesday, September 13, 2023 7:00pm

Meeting Called to Order
Vice-Chairman Richard Vinyard called the meeting to order at 7:30pm after a 30-minute
delayed start time. Roll was called and a quorum was established.

Roll Call
Danny Williams-yes, Deborah Horaz-yes, Rusty Hyett-yes/via Zoom, Reagan Goins-yes,
Greg Millen-yes, Richard Vinyard-yes

City Staff
Krysti Barksdale-Noble, Community Development Director

Chris Funkhouser, Alderman
Jackie Berg, Consultant-Houseal Lavigne
Lynn Dubajic Kellogg, City Consultant

Other Guests

Christine Vitosh, Vitosh Reporting Service
Mike Krempski

Molly Krempski

Rick Koshko, WSPY

Matt Gilbert, Green Door, via Zoom

Previous Meeting Minutes July 12, 2023

The minutes were approved on a motion by Mr. Williams and second by Ms. Goins. Roll
call vote: Horaz-yes, Hyett-yes, Goins-yes, Millen-yes, Vinyard-yes, Williams-yes.
Carried 6-0.

Citizen’s Comments None

Public Hearings

Mr. Vinyard stated the procedure for the Public Hearings and swore in those who would
give testimony during the Public Hearings. At approximately 7:33pm the Hearings were
opened on a motion by Ms. Horaz and second by Mr. Williams. Roll call: Hyett-yes,
Goins-yes, Millen-yes, Vinyard-yes, Williams-yes, Horaz-yes. Carried 5-0.

1. PZC 2023-09 United City of Yorkville has filed an Application for numerous
amendments to the existing Yorkville City Code of Ordinances to adopt a new
Unified Development Ordinance, including changes to the Zoning District Map,
pursuant to section 11-13-14 of the Illinois Municipal Code (65 ILCS 5/11-13-14)
and Section 10-4-10 of the Yorkville Zoning Ordinance. The proposed
amendments relate to the existing Title 10 — Zoning, Title 11 — Subdivision
Control, and the following chapters of Title 8 — Buildings Regulations: Chapter 7
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— Stormwater and Flooding Regulations, Chapter 12 — Landscape Ordinance and
Chapter 15 — Appearance Code of the Yorkville City Code.

2. PZC 2023-10 United City of Yorkville, Kendall County, Illinois, petitioner, is
proposing a text amendment to Chapter 6: Permitted and Special Uses in the
Zoning Ordinance to identify ’data center”, “refrigerated warehouse (cold
storage)”, and “battery uses” as permitted uses within the M-1 Limited
Manufacturing and M-2 General Manufacturing districts. This text amendment
will provide definitions for the establishment and operation of such uses in these
zoning districts. Additionally, an amendment to Table 10.16.03 in Chapter 16:
Off-Street Parking and Loading in the Zoning Ordinance related to the uses is

proposed.
(See Court Reporter's Transcript of Public Hearings)
A motion to close the Public Hearings was made at approximately 8:24pm by Mr.
Williams and seconded by Ms. Goins. Roll call: Horaz-yes, Hyett-yes, Goins-yes,
Millen-yes, Vinyard-yes, Williams-yes. Carried 6-0.

Unfinished Business None

New Business

1. PZC 2023-09 Amendments (See Full description above)

Ms. Noble stated that the recommendations made at the August 31% final UDO meeting
are not yet included in the UDO document. She also noted that staff received clear
direction from City Council that land size should not be changed in the R-1 and R-2
districts.

The Commissioners reviewed the recommended changes from the UDO Committee and
discussed some of them briefly. Ms. Noble then summarized the revisions and
recommendations made by PZC Commissioners as follows:

Chapter 2: Commissioners OK with dwelling unit rather than family unit

Chapter 3: Omit R-2-A zoning and leave R-1 and R-2 as they currently exist

Chapter 4: Change ADU: recommend attached homes be permitted outright and
detached should be special use

Chapter 5: Re: off-street parking : recommend the changes advisory committee stated--
2 spaces for single-family, change townhome parking spaces from 1.25 to 2.25

Chapter 6; eliminate all regulations for yard signs

Chapter 7: Subdivision standards: recommend to remove connectivity requirement; keep
cluster developments as PUD

Ms. Horaz asked about the “in lieu of fee parking”. Ms. Noble said if the parking
becomes an issue or is inadequate, City Council can revoke that.

The discussion of revisions concluded and Vice-Chairman Vinyard entertained a motion
to approve PZC 2023-09 Unified Development Ordinance. Mr. Williams made the
motion, (there was no second) and he read it as follows:
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Action Item:

Text & Map Amendment
Motion: In consideration of testimony presented during a Public Hearing on September
13, 2023 and discussions conducted at that meeting, the Planning and Zoning
Commission recommends approval to the City Council a request to adopt the proposed
Unified Development Ordinance (UDO) and supplemental Zoning Map as prepared and
presented by consultant, Houseal Lavigne, dated September 6, 2023 and summarized in a
staff memorandum dated September 7, 2023 and further subject to the inclusion of
Chapter 4, Use Standards, from a memo dated September 1*, the inclusion of Chapter 5
Development Standards from a memo dated September 1% and the addition of townhome
parking requiring 2.25 units, the recommendation for Chapter 6 for the city to not
regulate yard signs, the inclusion of Chapter 7 recommendation to remove the
connectivity index, and for cluster developments to remain PUD's.
Roll call: Hyett-yes, Goins-yes, Millen-yes, Vinyard-yes, Williams-yes, Horaz-yes.
Passed 6-0.

2. PZC 2023-10 Text Amendment (full description above)

Ms. Horaz asked if the city has considered high energy and water use in some of the
industrial uses as in the case of the upcoming lettuce farm. All are outright permitted,
said Ms. Noble, and these types of projects go through an engineering process. Staff has
also started doing research. Recycling batteries is also a concern for Ms. Horaz. Mr.
Williams suggested that the city engineer could review and not support a certain business.
Mr. Matt Gilbert weighed in and said the market will determine if the power is not there.
Fire protection concerns were mentioned by Mr. Vinyard.

Action Item:

Text Amendment
A motion was made by Mr. Williams and seconded by Ms. Goins to approve PZC-2023-
10 Text Amendment. Mr. Williams read the motion as follows:

Motion:

In consideration of testimony presented during a Public Hearing on September 13, 2023
and discussions conducted at that meeting, the Planning and Zoning Commission
recommends approval to the City Council a request for a text amendment to Chapter 6:
Permitted and Special Uses in the Zoning Ordinance to identify ”data center”,
“refrigerated warehouse (cold storage)”, and “battery uses” as permitted uses within the
M-1 Limited Manufacturing and M-2 General Manufacturing districts and an amendment
to Table 10.16.03 in Chapter 16: Off-Street Parking and Loading in the Zoning
Ordinance related to the uses is proposed, as recommended in a staff memo dated July
26, 2023.

Roll call: Goins-yes, Millen-yes, Vinyard-yes, Williams-yes, Horaz-yes, Hyett-(lost
Zoom connection)

3. PZC 2023-14 {city petition number} Troy M. Williams and Ashley L. Rusch, are
requesting approval of a Plat of Vacation to vacate the public easements between
two (2) parcels (Lots 100 and 101) within the Whitetail Ridge subdivision. The
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real property is located at 7557 and 7583 Clubhouse Drive in unincorporated
Kendall County.

Ms. Noble said the petitioner is consolidating 2 lots outside of the city limits and they
want to vacate an interior easement to build one home. Drainage is not an issue and there
are no utilities in the easement.

Action Item:

1.5 Mile Review
Commissioners Williams and Horaz moved and seconded, respectively, to approve PZC
2023-28 Whitetail Ridge. Mr. Williams read the motion as follows:

Motion: In consideration of the proposed mile and half review of Kendall County
Petition 23-28 {county number} for a plat of vacation to vacate the public easements
between two (2) parcels (Lots 100 and 101) within the Whitetail Ridge subdivision
commonly known as 7557 and 7583 Clubhouse Drive, the Planning and Zoning
Commission recommends the City Council to not object to the request.

Roll call: Millen-yes, Vinyard-yes, Williams-yes, Horaz-yes, Hyett-(lost Zoom
connection), Goins-yes. Passed 5-0.

Additional Business
1. City Council Action Updates
a. PZC 2022-02 Turning Point Energy: no motion was made on the request for
a solar farm.
b. PZC 2022-03 Turning Point Energy: no motion was made on the request for
the solar farm.
c¢. PZC 2023-04 Trinity Church: variance was approved.

Adjournment
There was no further business and the meeting was adjourned at 9:17pm on a motion by

Mr. Williams and second by Ms. Horaz. Voice vote approval.

Respectfully submitted by
Marlys Young, Minute Taker
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PZC - Public Hearings - September 13, 2023

UNITED CITY OF YORKVILLE

YORKVILLE, ILLINOIS

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION

PUBLIC HEARING

651 Prairie Pointe Drive

Yorkville, Illinois

Wednesday, September 13, 2023

7:00 p.m.

Vitosh Reporting Service

815.993.2832 cms.vitosh@gmail.com
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PZC - Public Hearings - September 13, 2023

PRESENT IN PERSON AND VIA ZOOM:

Mr. Richard Vinyard, Acting Chairman,

Ms. Deborah Horaz,
Mr. Danny Williams,
Mr. Greg Millen,
Ms. Reagan Goins,

Mr. Rusty Hyett.

ALSO PRESENT:

Ms. Krysti Barksdale-Noble, Community

Development Director;

Ms. Marlys Young, Minute Taker.

I NDE X

WITNESS: PAGE

MOLLY KREMPSKI 6
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PZC - Public Hearings - September 13, 2023

(WHEREUPON, the following
proceedings were had in public
hearing:)

CHATIRMAN VINYARD: Public hearings. So
tonight there are two public hearings scheduled
for tonight's Planning and Zoning Commission
meeting. The purpose of these hearings is to
invite testimony from members of the public
regarding the proposed request that is being
considered before this commission tonight.

Public testimony from persons
present who wish to speak may be for or against
the request or to ask questions of the petitioner
regarding the request being heard.

Those persons wishing to testify are
asked to speak clearly, one at a time, state your
name and who you represent, i1if anyone. You are
also asked to sign in at the podium.

If you plan to speak during
tonight's public hearing as a petitioner or as a
member of the public, please stand now and raise
your right hand and repeat after me.

(The witness was thereupon duly

sworn.)
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PZC - Public Hearings - September 13, 2023

4
CHAIRMAN VINYARD: So the following
order for receiving testimony during the public
hearing will be as follows: First we will do the

petitioner presentation and then we will go on to
those who wish to speak in favor of the request,
followed by those who wish to speak in opposition
to the request.

May I have a motion to open the
public hearing on Petition number PZC 2020-01,
Yorkville Comprehensive Plan map --

MS. NOBLE: I'm sorry, it's PZC 2023.
Sorry about that.

CHATIRMAN VINYARD: May I have a motion
to open the public hearing on Petition number PZC
2023-09, United Development Ordinance?

MS. HORAZ: So moved.

MR. WILLIAMS: Second.

CHAIRMAN VINYARD: Roll call vote on the
motion, please.

MS. YOUNG: Yes. Hyett. Hyett.

MS. NOBLE: Looks like our connection
dropped.

MS. YOUNG: Okay. Goins.

MS. GOINS: Yes.
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PZC - Public Hearings - September 13, 2023

MS. YOUNG: Millen.

MR. MILLEN: Yes.

MS. YOUNG: Vinyard.

CHAIRMAN VINYARD: Yes.

MS. YOUNG: Williams.

MR. WILLIAMS: Yes.

MS. YOUNG: And Horaz.

MS. HORAZ: Yes.

MR. HYETT: Hyett, yes.

MS. YOUNG: Thank you.

CHAIRMAN VINYARD: So the public
hearings for discussion tonight are as follows:
PzC 2023-09, the United City of Yorkville, has

filed an application for numerous amendments to

the existing Yorkville City Code of Ordinances to

adopt a new Unified Development Ordinance,
including changes in the Zoning District Map
pursuant to Section 11-13-14 of the Illinois
Municipal Code and Section 10-4-10 of the
Yorkville Zoning Ordinance.

The proposed amendments relate to
the existing Title 10, Zoning, Title 11,
Subdivision Control, and the following chapters

of Title 8, Building Regulations, Chapter 7,
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PZC - Public Hearings - September 13, 2023

Stormwater and Flooding Regulations, Chapter 12,
Landscape Ordinances, and Chapter 15, Appearance
Code of the United City of Yorkville.

The second one will be PzZC 2023-10,
United City of Yorkville, Kendall County,
Illinois, petitioner, 1is proposing a text
amendment to Chapter 6, permitted and special
uses in the Zoning Ordinance to identify a data
center, refrigerated warehouse or cold storage
and battery uses as permitted uses within the M-1
Limited Manufacturing and M-2 General
Manufacturing Districts.

This text amendment will provide
definitions for the establishment and operation
of such uses in these zoning districts.
Additionally, an amendment to Table 10.16.03 in
Chapter 16, off street parking and loading in the
Zoning Ordinance related to the uses is proposed.

That was a mouthful. All right. So
open the public hearing. Krysti, if you could,
please, present for us, 2023-09, United -- or
Yorkville Unified Development Ordinance map and
text amendment.

MS. NOBLE: Okay. Good evening. There

Vitosh Reporting Service
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PZC - Public Hearings - September 13, 2023

is a presentation that's above you and in front
of you that I will be going through. The UDO
started in March of 2019. The city initiated
this process to look at our various existing city
ordinances and combine them into one cohesive,
single reference, graphic dense document.

The city ordinances range from the
Zoning Ordinance, which was originally adopted in
1974 and last updated holistically in 2018. Our
Subdivision Control Ordinances and Standards,
which were adopted in 2004, our Landscaping
Ordinance, 2009, and then the Appearance Code in
2005.

So we combined all these documents
into a user friendly we call it Unified
Development Ordinance to address not only
residents who are looking to do something to
their home or their property and be able to find
everything in one location, but for developers
and staff as well.

So in the packet there is a very
robust memo that goes over each of the chapter
reviews. The UDO actually had a committee of its

own that met about 15 times over the last
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PZC - Public Hearings - September 13, 2023

four years to tweak the types of changes of
growth management that the city was looking for
and other chapters as far as processes, and
tonight is a presentation of those discussions.

I will let you know that the city
did have an open house open to the public on
August 31st to review the document, provide
comments, and the UDO Advisory Committee itself
held a meeting that night and proposed some
additional changes to the document that are not
included in tonight's presentation, but if
conversations are started by the public that want
to explore that information, a memo was provided
in there of the changes that the committee had
recommended on the 31st. So let's get started.

So the UDO, it's nine chapters, and
that includes a smart code, so we will start with
Chapters 1 and 3. So Chapter 1 itself is just
general provisions. It establishes -- there is a
time lag. It establishes the effective date of
the UDO document itself. If approved, we are
looking at an effective date of January lst,
2024.

It just introduces the document,
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PZC - Public Hearings - September 13, 2023

provides some context, the authority, identifies
who the members are that are implementing the
ordinance itself, and sets the stage for the
document.

Chapter 2 deals with definitions.
Let's go back. We'll start with Chapter 3,
District Standards. So Chapter 3 talks about the
different districts and establishes the districts
and the purposes of those districts, but before
we get to those, we're going to jump back just a
little bit to Chapter 2. Chapter 2 is
definitions.

Basically this is a complete list of
the definitions that are referenced throughout
the UDO. It talks about updated definitions,
which provides clarity, and to the left you will
see an image of what that smart code would look
like, so if you are reviewing the code and you
see a term that's underlined, you don't
understand it, you put your mouse, hover over it,
and it will give you what the actual definition
is for that particular word so that you are not
jumping back and forth between pages of the

document, so it streamlines that process for the
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PZC - Public Hearings - September 13, 2023
10

reader.

There is some clarifications that
were made. In our current ordinance we use the
word structure and building kind of
interchangeably, which is not necessarily so when
you're looking at temporary structures or
permanent buildings, so we make the clean break
between what's a structure and what's a building.

We specified out professional office
uses versus personal care services. Right now
the ordinance says a barber is a professional
office. Well, we wanted to separate that out
because the definition of professional office 1is
anything -- any operation that requires you to be
licensed, so we wanted to make sure that we were
clear when we said office use that it was a
doc -- not doctor, I'm sorry, an attorney or a
lawyer versus, you know, nail technician. And
then animal hospitals versus veterinarians 1is
another example.

We also addressed new concepts for
development. There is enclosed auto sales now as
opposed to just open lot auto sales. There are

new changes in the car and automobile sales
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PZC - Public Hearings - September 13, 2023
11

industry where people are storing vehicles
off-site, making appointments for people to look
at the vehicles, instead of, you know, open sales
lot where you drive by and see all the wvehicles
for sale, so we wanted to be able to accommodate
those uses in some of the industrial districts,
so an example would be a car lot type.

Enclosed versus outdoor public
storage facilities, the enclosed facilities are
just the single building with the units inside
the building. Those are more appropriate for a
business district where you have -- versus the
outdoor public storage facilities that you drive
up to, which would be more appropriate in an
industrial setting.

And then we have new uses, which 1is
data centers, vehicle charging stations and
battery storage. Those are more of the advanced
uses, energy uses, that are newer, that our code
just didn't address, and we will talk about that
more in the next public hearing.

So Chapter 3 delves into, as we
were mentioning earlier, the district standards,

so it kind of establishes what are the districts.
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PZC - Public Hearings - September 13, 2023
12

We went from a total of 15 districts down to 14
in the UDO. We kind of eliminated some
under-used or unused districts to combined some
districts together to streamline uses that are
similar. We modernized the permitted and special
use tables, we will get into that a little bit
more, and we did some minor adjustments to
permitted yard obstructions.

One thing that came out of the
discussion was porches, for instance. We were
allowing them to encrocach about three feet within
a required yard, but if it's an open porch, the
committee decided to allow five feet of
encroachment where you don't have to get a
variation and it will allow for homes that have
short frontages to be able to take advantage of
an open porch situation.

So here is an example of a use
table. They are now categorized, easier to
understand, instead of just business, and then
all the businesses alphabetically. Guess we are
waiting for that one to catch up. That's all
right. There you go, it caught up.

What happens in this table is now
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13

we're separating the uses, more sensible. So all
your agricultural uses, all your residential
uses, all your commercial service uses, so that
if you weren't familiar with how the city set up
its business district or its industrial district,
if you know what your use is, it will be easier
to find instead of searching through several
tables in the existing document. So those are
Chapters 1 through 3, kind of sets the stage.
Now we go on to Chapters 4 through
5, which is kind of the meat of the UDO itself.
The use standards. These establish the
districts, as we just mentioned, the ag, from ag
to alternative energy to institutional to even
our accessory and temporary uses, and then
Chapter 5 delves into how those uses look, the
development standards for each of those uses in
regards to off-street parking, landscaping,
fencing and outdoor lighting standards, so we
broke each of those categories down from
residential to commercial to industrial, and if
you look at the images here, it Jjust talks about
some of the uses that we are now regulating, and

you can see there is the EV, electrical wvehicle,
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PZC - Public Hearings - September 13, 2023

14
charging stations. So let's start with
residential. Give that time to catch up on the
screen. There is a lag on the -- there we go,

for the members that are viewing us remotely.

So there is new residential
standards. So we improved the residential
standards, development standards, relating to
multi-unit housing, so duplexes, townhomes, even
apartments, where we're allowing more of the
frontage to come up to the property line by
allowing an alley. It would be a private alley,
so that you are not faced with a lot of
streamline of garages on the frontage.

There is a concept called accessory
dwelling units, the ADU's, and within that there
is an accessory commercial unit, so the accessory
dwelling unit, you see that image in the middle.
The red areas indicate livable space that you can
have on your lot, they can be attached above a
garage or detached. The idea is that at a
maximum of 900 square feet you can have livable
space that's for a family member or someone that
you're caring for or that may be caring for a

loved one in your home, so that they would have
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their own autonomous living space from the owner
itself. This has been very popular.

AARP has been recommending this as a
stop gap to some housing shortages for those that
are aging out of their home and are looking to
stay close to family.

Accessory commercial units, that's
the image to the left in the middle, that is kind
of like a she shed. If you had a small, you
know, home occupation, right now we do allow home
occupations, but they cannot be detached from the
home, so you can't operate a home occupation out
of your garage or out of a shed. Now we are
recommending that as a special use; you can
operate one of these detached commercial units on
your property.

The ADU itself right now is being
proposed as an outright permitted use, but that
can —-- the recommendation that came out of the
meeting with the committee on the 31st was maybe
the detached unit would be a special use and the
attached use can be permitted use.

Off street parking, some of those

regulations that were tweaked. There is a
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parking pad standard now. Right now if you were
to add additional driveway space on the side of
your garage, if you are within that required
setback, whatever it is for your district,
typically for R-2 District it's ten feet, you
would not be able to have that parking pad.

We are proposing to allow that
parking pad to happen with some type of screening
involved, it can be a fence, it can be landscape
screening, and so open driveway area, and it can
be as close as five feet to that side property
line.

So I have denied several permits for
people trying to do that. This is just a way for
us to address some of those concerns that we see
coming through and try and make it more usable,
the Zoning Ordinance, more usable for residents.

And also there is regulation now for
portable outdoor storage containers, those pods.
They are a temporary use and we kind of establish
where they can be located on the site and for how
long.

So for the commercial standards, a

lot of emphasis was put in trying to regulate
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those future uses that would be coming along,
trying to get ahead of that. One, for instance,
is outdoor driving ranges, that you would see the
tower-type uses, we've added regulations for
that, massage parlors, we have now recommended
that they are special uses instead of outright
permitted uses.

We've talked about the indoor
storage, personal storage facilities, so it will
look 1like a building 1like that. Added more
bicycle parking regulations, kind of encouraging
that, and also giving a bonus if you do have
that, a reduction of some of your parking
requirements. Similar to that is the ride share
and the pick-up service that a lot of businesses
use now. So now we're regulating where those are
located, kind of want them off to the side so
they're not taking up so much of the closed
parking for people that are actually entering the
building, and also offering a reduction of the
required parking minimum for that as well.

Landscaping wise, the standards have
been beefed up a lot to address incompatible uses

or less intense uses next to a more intense use.
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Right now our landscape requirements are very
basic about the transition space, it just kind of
gives a size and a number per linear foot of
landscape material that you have, but not really
addressing if I'm a resident and I'm next to --
you know, I back up to maybe a commercial use, so
we created transition zones, so you have Type A
through D, and A would be something that you
would have that are kind of compatible land uses,
you don't need as much screening, but it would be
nice to have some trees between you or another
development; B gets a little bit more intense,
all the way to D, for two incompatible land uses
that would be adjacent to each other to make sure
that that robust screening was there.

We also introduced a concept called
a fee in lieu, and we did it in two places. One,
we did it to off-street parking. There are some
situations where you cannot meet the minimum
parking requirements for a site, and if it 1is
justified, through the city council review
process, a maximum of 20 percent of off-street
parking can be substituted with a fee, so then

that fee would be used and appropriated to other
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off-street parking space maintenance throughout
the city, so public spaces, public on-street
parking, public lots.

We also implemented that idea in the
landscaping ordinance, so there is a fee in lieu
for tree preservation. Say you develop a site,
can't replace all the trees that you are going to
remove on the site, well, now you can pay for
that to the city and the city will use those
funds, put it in a tree bank and plant trees
throughout the --

CHAIRMAN VINYARD: (Inaudible) .

MS. NOBLE: Yeah, exactly.

CHAIRMAN VINYARD: Nice.

MS. NOBLE: Plant trees throughout the
city. And the final use standards is the
industrial development standards. So here is an
idea that was brought to us, we have some users
that want to do live/work space, so like loft
space above a working area, so we've come up with
a concept of an artisan manufacturing use. SO
this is in the manufacturing district, it will be
a special use, so if an individual has a company

that produces something or assembles something on
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a wholesale size, but also wants to live above
the unit, this is an option for them.

So there is an example of a bakery
on the first floor and then lofts above, so you
would have a maximum of one residential unit
allowed. We do allow this in one of our
commercial districts. We have a bakery downtown
that's actually utilizing that as a special use,
and so it can also be implemented in the
industrial districts as well.

We updated the alternative energy
regulations; if you notice, we've got a lot of
solar applications. We've passed two, we've got
a couple coming through in the future, so we have
adjusted that.

A lot of the solar companies have to
go through a variance process because of our
standard for the clearance. We wanted to make
that a less burdensome process, meet with the
current standards, development standards, for the
actual user. They want to be closer to the
ground, so we adjusted the minimum clearance on
that.

We did more mechanical screening
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requirements for on-ground and above-ground
mechanical units for businesses and we modernized
our outdoor lighting standards.

So Chapters 6 and 7 delve into signs
as well as our subdivision standards. So in the
sign ordinance, we looked at the purpose of the
standards, the measurements, permitted signs,
temporary signs, and as well as maintenance
standards.

In our subdivision standards we
looked at how we regulated lots, street designs,
circulation within and connectivity within
developments, particularly residential, and even
commercial developments, and looked at new
concepts like cluster developments and
anti-monotony standards, kind of increased those,
as well as looked at our park and land
dedication.

So delving into the signs, did a
complete rewrite due to Reed versus Gilbert.

That was a 2015 case that dealt with the
regulation of content of signs. So the city
cannot regulate signs based off content anymore,

so the way that our current sign ordinance has --
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let's say that would be an off-street -- off-site
sign, you can't determine that's an off-site sign
because we'd have to look at the content to be
able to determine that. We can't determine
that's a garage sale sign because we'd have to
look at the writing to determine it's a garage
sale sign.

So we did a content neutral sign
regulation, and so there is categories, so ground
mounted sign, wall sign, direct -- a yard sign.
Those types of things have been implemented.

So as far as the monument signs for
commercial, we looked at expanding the material
list for monument signs. We see on the right
side of the screen we have current regulations.
This is what our current regulations continue to
get us.

Our proposed regulations are looking
at different types of signs, signs that would
evoke different materials. If a higher qguality
material is being proposed, you'll get a larger
sign, get a 48 square feet sign as opposed to the
current 32 square foot sign.

We allowed A frames and sandwich
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board signs in the downtown. We have a lot of
businesses that are east or west of 47 that don't
get a lot of exposure. This i1s an opportunity
for them to be able to use one sign that's within
750 feet of their entrance within the
right-of-way during their hours of operation.

Posting yard sign regulations have
been proposed. Right now we're looking at
posting signs for lots that face a major
thoroughfare having a larger square footage area
versus lots that do not, and then an unlimited
amount of signs during and before a local, state
or national election.

There is new landscape requirements
for ground signs. Right now we do not require
any landscaping at the base of the sign; hence
those are the signs that you see before you. So
what we are proposing is that for every square
foot of sign space you have to provide a half a
square foot of landscaping, so it's
proportionate, it's easy to regulate, and it will
soften up some of the appearances of the
businesses.

The other signs that are regulated
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based on their proportion to the wall and not
just a set sign area, it's kind of difficult when
you are set hundreds of feet off of a major
thoroughfare and you only get 32 square feet and
no one can read the sign.

We increased the electronic message
board signage area from 50 percent of the sign to
80 percent, and then we updated the graphics in
the code itself so it's easier to read and
understand.

For the subdivision standards, some
of the major areas that we looked at was the lot
orientation. Again, people are looking at using
energy solutions, like roof-mounted solar panels,
so if we have an east-west kind of orientation of
our lots, that would be beneficial to them. It's
not a requirement, but it's recommended, just so
developers start thinking about how they lay out
their developments.

Block lengths, right now we are
still recommending our 1,350 linear feet for a
block, but we are encouraging shorter blocks, and
what we are proposing is a connectivity standard

where for every street that you lay out, you
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should have two points of connectivity, so a
one-to-two ratio.

Most of our subdivisions have that,
or greater, they may have one-to-three, but it's
just a way to kind of break up the streetscape
and allow for better connectivity of
neighborhoods.

Street design elements were
included, a complete street design, so there is
various -- these are just a few standards for
street elements, so you'd have on-street parking,
you'd have a sidewalk, you'd have a multi-use
trail, a parkway, depending on the width of the
street, if it's a utility, if it's a neighborhood
street or if it's a larger thoroughfare, these
are some of the elements that would be required
in a street.

The only element that's not going to
be required is on-street bike path. That could
be left up to the city engineer if he would
recommend that on any of the public streets.

Cluster development, you will see
that in the upper left corner. This would be

similar to a PUD process. It will be a special
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use, but what it's doing is utilizing the lay of
the lot better than just one unit per acre spread
out, typical suburban style development.

You would take the same, in this
example, 32-acre lot and on the urban -- the
conventional sprawl you would have one unit, one
dwelling unit per acre, and as a current
conservation, you would be saving some of these
environmental elements, excuse me, that are on
the site and then confining the development to
eight acres, so you would essentially still have
32 homes on 32 acres, but they would be
clustered.

Finally, we talked about
anti-monotony regulations. In the upper right
corner you will see the highlighted lots are the
ones that would typically have similar features
where they would be seen as the same. Excuse me.

CHATIRMAN VINYARD: We'll give her a
break for a second.

MS. NOBLE: Thank you. Chapters 8 and 9
are pretty simple. They are the UDO review
process and then the non-performance standards of

structures. Would you want to take over? Thank
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you.

MS. BERG: Thank you. So for the --
Pardon me. I am Jackie Berg. I am the
consultant that helped the city with this
process.

So Chapter 8 is the UDO review and
approval process. This essentially has all of
the administrative procedures and approval done
here in the community, so the changes here were
all meant to simplify the language, really
clarify the process, so it's really easy and
simple for someone to walk through any type of
permit that they need or development approval.
Those steps are very clear, very transparent.

Then for Chapter 9, non-conforming

27

buildings, structures and uses, really not a lot

of major change to this section at all, carrying

forward the existing regulations that this
chapter deals with, either a building, a
structure or a use that was legally established,

but is no longer allowed in the code today, and

just steps out the standards for how those things

can be maintained and need to be located moving

forward.
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MS. NOBLE: One feature in Chapter 8
that's new is that we have codified a lot of the
processes that we go through with development.
This was not always forward facing to the public,
the developer found out when they submitted an
application, so now we've codified and kind of
showed the process, so you come in and you ask
for a development, you'll know right away the
number of meetings, you'll actually know the
timing of the meetings and how the process works,
and also there is a recommendation for a
community meeting that staff can recommend to the
developer i1if a project we feel is going to be a
little bit much for the neighboring residents to
absorb.

It will give them a lot of time to
review the plans with the developer before they
are hit with a public hearing notice saying show
up to city council on Wednesday night to talk
about this project.

Then the final component of the UDO
is a smart code. Our codes are static, they are
books right now, not very user friendly for the

public, so we created a web forum where you can
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actually go, look at certain sections of the code
that you are interested in, those are called the
quick reference or the quick tables, you can look
up maps, and there is also calculators involved
where you can calculate, if you wanted to do a
sign, what is the maximum size of the sign based
off of my zoning, the frontage of the building,
and that way you can have that information and
not necessarily have to, you know, put a permit
in hoping that you understood the code the best
you could and wait and see if it would be
approved.

The city has partnered in with
Encode Plus, and Encode Plus is a company that
actually partners with our code provider, so if
you go online and look at city code, you'll see
that we have it and it's static, you can click on
it, but the company that provides the muni code
also partners with our smart code company, Encode
Plus, and so this is a video that will Jjust show
you how those two integrate and what you would
see.

That's fine. It's just a video that

shows how the actual code integrates, how it's
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transportable, you can view it from anywhere and

it's easier to use than the static presentation.
You can just look at the content.

So it's internet-based. It's used
by a lot of planners and zoning administrators
and even attorneys. It uses some cutting edge
technology. You can see, there is an example

right there, which shows what the code looked

like. You can even sign up for notifications, so

if the code is amended, you will be notified, if

there is any particular section you are looking

for. It's password protected, so no one can just

go in and change the code. A lot of communities

use it and they brand it themselves. It's
accessible anywhere, as I mentioned, and as the
city is moving to paperless, this is a great
option for us and we can update the code online
as well.

So that is the gist of the

presentation, and if anyone has any questions,

want to dive into the memo a little bit more, we

are here to answer those questions.
CHAIRMAN VINYARD: Is there anyone

present who wishes to speak in favor of the
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request?
(No response.)

CHAIRMAN VINYARD: All right. Is there
anyone present who wishes to speak in opposition
of the request? Go ahead. Just state your name
for us.

MOLLY KREMPSKTI,
having been first duly sworn, testified from the
podium as follows:

MS. KREMPSKI: My name 1s Molly Krempski
and I represent the People. I would just like to
make a few comments about the newly proposed yard
sign regulations within the UDO plan.

Each of you have a lawful notice in
front of you that lists all the evidence for what
I am about to say. Those were delivered to the
council via certified mail on August 22nd.

Tonight I specifically discussing
restrictions for yard signs on private property,
all of which actually fall outside the authority
granted to city council. The key words are
private and public. It's true that our aldermen
have been granted some authority to regulate

public property; however, there are no provisions
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within our constitutions that grant them the
authority to regulate private property rights, so
if they want to write codes for signs on public
property, they certainly have been granted the
authority to do so, but going beyond the
authority which they have been given is an
unreasonable and/or arbitrary use of power, which
is literally the definition of tyranny.

As much as we may be periodically
annoyed by our neighbor's collection of yard
signs, we cannot use it as an opportunity to
strip liberty and private rights from fellow
Americans.

Remember, unconstitutional
regulations that serve us today will be the same
regulations that will be used to oppress us in
the future.

The men who founded America knew
what it was like to live under an oppressive
monarch. As a result, they intentionally formed
America as a constitutional republic where power
originates from and remains with the people.
Their only higher authority was Jesus.

The truth was memorialized by the
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popular Revolutionary War response, we have no
king but Jesus, when George or King George tried
to force mandates on colonists. These men
understood their God given authority to live as
people. A few weeks ago at the UDO committee
meeting, Jackie, the consultant, explained that
because murals are art, which actually translates
to them being expression, which 1is protected by
our constitution, murals cannot be regulated.

In addition to the right of
expression, the people also have a right to the
security of their own private property, which per
our Constitutions is also not subject to
regulation like some public property.

Within America's constitutional
republic, public servants are selected by the
people who uphold the constitutions of the land.
Our aldermen took an ocath to uphold these
constitutions before taking their seats. Elected
representatives are servants of the people,
granted the power to pass only those laws
necessary for carrying out the limited powers
specifically granted to them by the constitutions

of the land while respecting the rights of the
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people.

I'm going to read that again because
it's the premise of this whole thing. Elected
representatives are servants of the people,
granted the power to pass only those laws
necessary for carrying out the limited powers
specifically granted to them by the constitutions
of the land while upholding the rights of the
people.

Furthermore, the rights of the
people listed in the constitution are not the end
of the rights of the people; those are simply the
enumerated ones.

Article 1, Section 24 of the
Illinois Constitution clearly states that, quote,
the enumeration in this constitution of certain
rights shall not be construed to deny or
disparage others retained by the individual
citizens, end quote.

What does this mean? It means that
the people have reserved and retained any and all
power that has not been specifically granted to
the government.

America was established to operate
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within a limited form of government that must
function within the narrow boundaries established
by the people. If a specific power is not given
to the government by the people, then the
government doesn't have that power.

While Article 7, Section 7 of the
Illinois Constitution does grant city
legislatures the power to do six specific things,
they must figure out how to do those six things
without trespassing any of the rights of the
people, whether the enumerated rights of
Article 1, the Bill of Rights of the Illinois
Constitution, or any other rights retained by the
people as discussed in Article 1, Section 24.

We have an obligation to oversee our
public servants, which by your presence at this
commission I can see you are taking seriously and
I thank you for the giving of your time.

We also have a duty to actively
assert our rights when public officials overstep
their granted power. We must know these
documents and the rights enumerated within them
in order to responsibly steward the power that

remains with the people, and we saw this with
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COVID, unconstitutional mandates and shutdowns.

We need to start speaking out. It's
a lot easier to prevent an unconstitutional sign
ordinance from being passed than to reverse one
once enacted.

It's really not hard to read and
apply our founding documents. Our constitutions
were written by the people, just regular people,
to be executed by regular people for the benefit
of regular people.

So my point as it applies to this
specific hearing is that the city has not been
granted the power to regulate the people's
expression or private property by controlling the
size or position of our yard signs, similar to
the way that the government has not been given
the power to limit the number of pages in a book,
interfere with the distribution of campaign
materials or regulate the disbursement of
informational pamphlets.

Article 1, Section 4 and 6 of the
Illinois Constitution reserves to the people the
right to, gquote, speak, write and publish freely,

and the right to, quote, be secure in their
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persons, houses, papers and other possessions.

The power to regulate these rights
has not been granted to the city and I am here
tonight to ask you to join me in referring to the
fundamental principles of our constitutions and
our republic form of government for liberty and
freedom for all Americans. Thank you.

CHAIRMAN VINYARD: Anyone else like to
speak in opposition?

(No response.)

CHAIRMAN VINYARD: Seeing as there are
none, are there any questions from the
commissioners for the petitioner, which would be
Krysti?

MR. WILLIAMS: I have one just for
clarification. I was just asking for --

MS. NOBLE: I think that mic is off.

The one that's green is on.

MR. WILLIAMS: Mine was Jjust a question
for clarification. I saw that the definition for
family home was being changed to dwelling unit.
We're not broadening the definition, correct,
that was just a vocabulary change?

MS. NOBLE: Correct. Correct.
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MR. WILLIAMS: Okay. Thank you.

MS. NOBLE: And the recommendation at
the UDO committee at the August 31st meeting was
to leave it as family, it's just we would have to
come up with a different definition for family.

CHATIRMAN VINYARD: I'm glad you brought
that up. The UDO recommendations, was there
anything else they recommended from that?

MS. NOBLE: Sure. So if you look at the
packet, there were a couple of things. So the
connectivity part they recommended not to have in
the UDO.

CHATIRMAN VINYARD: Okay.

MS. NOBLE: There also was a
recommendation in regards to lot size, and we
have a member from the UDO committee, if they
want to expand upon that a little bit. There is
Deb, was also on the committee, and our
chairperson, Alderman Funkhouser.

CHAIRMAN VINYARD: Is this an
appropriate time to have him do it or --

MS. NOBLE: Yeah, if you want. If you
want to present some of the --

CHAIRMAN VINYARD: Alderman Funkhouser,
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do you want to expound on that or --
ALDERMAN FUNKHOUSER: I will briefly.
CHAIRMAN VINYARD: All right. Thanks.
ALDERMAN FUNKHOUSER: Chris Funkhouser,
Alderman, 3rd Ward, chairman of the UDO. Deb
Horaz was on the committee with me, and we had
also three others; however, one of them had
stepped down from the position.

So Krysti mentioned at the UDO
committee on the 31st there were several
recommendations of the committee that were to put
back the recommendations that had been previously
taken out, so when looking at what was presented
tonight, that was based on a prior set of
recommendations.

At the subsequent final meeting of
the UDO, the recommendation was keep the
recommendations, so those replies are in regard
to the lot sizes, accessory dwelling units, if I
recall it was also the connectivity was
mentioned, and there were a couple more items
within that memo that Krysti mentioned was
attached.

So with those recommendations, it is
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such -- those were Jjust the recommendations of
the committee after further review, after having
gone through the Economic Development Committee,
that was also mentioned to them, that those
recommendations were made and put back in there.

So a lot of work has gone into this
thing. There is some very good recommendations.
Obviously Deb can attest to the amount of time
that was put into this and the complexity of it,
so for your very brief, but concise memo from
Krysti and the presentation, it's very good,
there is just an awful lot in here that's being
changed, so if you have questions, obviously
staff is fantastic, we have two -- our consultant
and Krysti, Deb was on here, she can articulate a
lot that was going on because we did go back and
forth on this quite a lot. We had several,
three, three and a half hour meetings, so --

But just read through that memo just
to understand the parts that were not in the
presentation tonight that are part of the
recommendation from the UDO that as this is
updated will be put back into the recommendation

that moves to the city council, also
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incorporating your recommendations tonight,
assuming you make any recommendations, too.
Thank you.

CHAIRMAN VINYARD: Is that it?

ALDERMAN FUNKHOUSER: Yep.

CHAIRMAN VINYARD: Thanks. SO we are
voting on this here? We are making a
recommendation?

MS. NOBLE: However you decide. We need
to go to the second public hearing right quick
and then we can close it and start the
deliberations.

CHATIRMAN VINYARD: Okay. Krysti, please
present PZC 2023-10, text amendment, please.

MS. NOBLE: Sure. So these are energy
industrial uses. Actually this request is
bundled into the proposed UDO, but the city
decided to separate these out just in case the
UDO takes a little bit longer for approval, but,
in general, we've also noticed a trend in
industrial users seeking expansive tracts of land
near rail, some on your intense road
transportation, and they are looking to construct

hyper energy related buildings, and some of these
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buildings include data centers, refrigerated
warehouses, which would be cold storage, and
battery uses, such as electric vehicle battery
manufacturing, charging and storage.

So we have a petitioner who is
looking -- who has purchased land on Lincoln
Prairie property and they have an interested

party that's looking to do some of these land

42

uses, so they wanted us to be a little bit ahead

before those uses come to the city asking for
approval so that we can have some basis of
approval for them.

So staff is proposing to amend the
text of the Zoning Ordinance to define these
uses -- and I'll go a little bit into the

definition of them -- as permitted uses in the

M-1 and M-2 manufacturing districts, and then we

additionally are amending the table that
regulates the minimum number of off-street
parking spaces needed for these types of uses

based off of how the industry standard is or

number of employees, individuals that go to these

sites.

So data centers, if you aren't
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familiar, are mega sized structures and they
house network computer systems, servers for data
storage, process and distribution. Just the way
that I am coming to you through Zoom, somebody
has to process that data.

Refrigerated warehouses or cold
storage, these are commonly seen in manufacturing
districts, but they are primarily for storing
highly perishable items for short periods of
time, so anything from food, candles, film, art,
plants, cosmetics, anything that you probably
order off of Amazon or food service prepared
would have to have one of these locations nearby
that they would ship to and then ship out.

And battery storage uses, these are,
as I mentioned, the batteries that you would
typically find, lithium ion, which would be your
cell phones or your laptops, computer and medical
equipment or electric vehicles.

They are becoming constantly
increasingly common and so it would just make
sense that we would have a land use for it and so
that we could regulate it.

So data centers are proposed to be
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defined as a facility comprised of networking
computers, storage systems and computing
infrastructure which organizes -- which
organizations rather use to assemble, process,
store and disseminate data.

This includes crypto currency
centers, which use network computers, storage
systems, and computing infrastructure to manage
the flow of digital or virtual currencies are
also included.

For refrigerated warehouse or cold

44

storage, the definition would be a facility which

is artificially or mechanically cooled in order

to maintain the integrity and quality of

perishable goods, and battery storage uses would

be a use that enables battery manufacturing,
charging, recycling, warehousing, storage and
related uses.

This may also include derived --
uses that derive energy from renewable sources
such as wind and solar power to be collected,
stored and then released for later use to an
electric grid, power plant or private user.

Finally, staff is looking to amend
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the minimum parking requirements to be 20 spaces
for battery storage uses and data centers over
70,000 square feet in building area, Jjust based
upon the uniqueness of the operational features
and that these uses typically do not generate
highly staffed employee count on site, and then
the refrigerated storage will meet the minimum
parking standards for general industrial uses.

Staff did reach out to Bristol
Kendall Fire District just to see what their
input would be for these types of uses. BKFD did
recommend to us that we adopt the 2023 NFPA,
which is the National Fire Protection Agency, 855
code, and staff is in the process -- we ordered a
few copies, we are in the process of adopting
that 1f we move forward with this text amendment,
and it just regulates these types of
particularly battery storage uses, stationary and
mobile uses.

So if there is any questions for
staff, and I believe the representative from
Green Door, who purchased the property on Lincoln
Prairie is available on Zoom if there are any

questions.
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CHAIRMAN VINYARD: Is there anyone
present who wishes to speak in favor of the
request?

(No response.)

CHAIRMAN VINYARD: Okay. Is there
anyone present who wishes to speak in opposition
of this request?

(No response.)

CHAIRMAN VINYARD: Seeing as there are
none, are there any questions from the
commissioners for the petitioner?

(No response.)

CHATIRMAN VINYARD: Nobody. Okay. All
right. So we will be concluding the public
hearings. Since all public testimony regarding
the petition has been taken, may I have a motion
to close the taking of testimony in this public
hearing?

MR. WILLIAMS: So moved.

MS. GOINS: Second.

CHAIRMAN VINYARD: Roll call vote on the
motion, please.

MS. YOUNG: Yes. Horaz.

MS. HORAZ: Yes.
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MR.

MS.

MS.

MS.

MR.

MS.
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YOUNG: Hyett. Hyett.
HYETT: Yes. Yes.

YOUNG: Thank you. Goins.
GOINS: Yes.

YOUNG: Millen.

MILLEN: Yes.

YOUNG: Vinyard.

CHATIRMAN VINYARD: Yes.

MS.

MR.

YOUNG : And Williams.

WILLIAMS: Yes.

CHATIRMAN VINYARD: All right. The

public hearing portion of tonight's meeting is

closed.

(Which were all the proceedings had
in the public hearing portion of
the meeting.)

---00o---
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STATE OF ILLINOIS )
) SS:
COUNTY OF LASALLE )

I, CHRISTINE M. VITOSH, a Certified
Shorthand Reporter of the State of Illinois, do
hereby certify:

That previous to the commencement
of any testimony heard, the witnesses were duly
sworn to testify the whole truth concerning the
matters herein;

That the foregoing public hearing
transcript, Pages 1 through 49, was reported
stenographically by me by means of machine
shorthand, was simultaneously reduced to
typewriting via computer-aided transcription
under my personal direction, and constitutes a
true record of the testimony given and the
proceedings had;

That the said public hearing was taken
before me at the time and place specified;

That I am not a relative or employee or
attorney or counsel, nor a relative or employee
of such attorney or counsel for any of the
parties hereto, nor interested directly or

indirectly in the outcome of this action.
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I further certify that my certificate
attached hereto applies to the original
transcript and copies thereof, signed and
certified under my hand only. I assume no
responsibility for the accuracy of any reproduced
copies not made under my control or direction.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I do hereunto set my
hand at Leland, Illinois, this 26th day of

September, 2023.

s Chrcatzine W dteak

CHRISTINE M. VITOSH,
C.S.R. Certificate No. 084-02883.
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Memorandum

To: Planning and Zoning Commission
From: Krysti J. Barksdale-Noble, Community Development Director
CC: Bart Olson, City Administrator

Brad Sanderson, City Engineer, EEI
Date: October 4, 2023
Subject: PZC 2023-08 QuikTrip Gasoline (Special Use)
107 E. Stagecoach Trl. - Proposed New Fuel Station & Convenience Store

SUMMARY:

The petitioner, Ali Bukhres, on behalf of QuikTrip Corporation, petitioner/contract purchaser, has filed an
application with the United City of Yorkville, Kendall County, Illinois requesting special use permit
authorization for a gasoline service station with accessory convenience store, pursuant to Section 10-6-0
of the Yorkville City Code. The real property consists of two (2) parcels totaling approximately 5.51 acres
and is located at the northeast corner of State Route 47 (Bridge Street) and State Route 71 (Stagecoach
Trail) intersection.

PROPERTY INFORMATION:

This property is currently
improved with various detached
metal structures on a gravel
foundation utilized for
industrial/farming storage and
truck related services, which
will  be demolished upon
development of the fuel station,
as illustrated in the aerial image
to the right.

The property was recently
rezoned from M-1 Manufacturing
to B-3 General Business District
as part of the former Graham’s C
Store  Development proposal.
The following table depicts the
current immediate surrounding properties’ zoning and land uses:

Zoning Land Use
North  B3- SU (Unincorporated Kendall County) Kendall County Highway Department

Silver Dollar Restaurant
South  B-3 General Business District All Season Motel
Transportation Land Use (IL Route 71)

East M-1 Limited Manufacturing District Undeveloped Agricultural Land

Transportation Land Use (IL Route 47)

Bliest [eRel BUBIrEES IS Fountain Village Commercial Development



PROJECT DESCRIPTION:

The QuikTrip Corporation is an American based chain of convenience stores based in Tulsa, Oklahoma.
With its recent expansion into the Chicagoland area, the property at 107 E. Stagecoach Trail will offer
fuel for automobiles and commercial/industrial trucks, a retail store, and made-fresh-to-order food
services. The fueling stations and an approximately 5,300 square foot convenience store will be located
on the 4.28-acre parcel (PIN #05-05-400-050), abutting State Route 47 (Bridge Street) to the west and
State Route 71 to the south. The second parcel (PIN 05-04-300-031), approximately 1.23-acres, is
currently not proposed to be developed, but may be utilized in the future for a car wash facility. Required
on-site detention for the site is proposed to be located underground, beneath the parking area.

SITE PLAN:

The proposed combined 5.51-acre site plan was reviewed by various City departments and outside
agencies to ensure compliance with applicable ordinances, regulations, and standards with regard to
building setbacks, parking/parking setbacks, circulation/access roads, stormwater management/utilities
and signage. Below are the summaries of those reviews.

Bulk Regulations
The petitioner has depicted the following property’s building setback locations:

BUILDING SETBACK REQUIRED MINIMUM PROPOSED SETBACK

+/- 150" (C Store)
+/- 190’ (Gas Pump Canopy)

Front Yard (West/IL 47) 50 feet +/- 117’ (C Store)

+/- 236’ (C Store)

+/- 62’ (Gas Pump Canopy)
+/- 341’ (C Store)

+/- 235’ (Gas Pump Canopy)

Interior Side Yard (North) 20 feet

Corner Side Yard (South/IL 71) 30 feet

Rear Yard (East) 20 feet



The maximum building height in the B-3 District is 80 feet. The overall height of the convenience store is
approximately 20 feet to the top of the cornice and 16 feet to the top of the masonry. Per Section 10-2-3,
building height is measured at the mean height between the eaves and ridge. The gas pump canopies have
a maximum height of about 18 feet. The maximum lot coverage for the B-3 General Business District
including all impervious surfaces is 80 percent. As stated on the site data table, the proposed impervious
lot coverage for the gas station site is ~54% (2.9-acres or 129,462 sq. ft.). Therefore, the petitioner meets
all bulk regulations according to the submitted materials. Upon future development of the car wash
facility, verification will be made that it meets the maximum lot coverage, as well.

Parking and Loading

According to the data table on the Site Plans submitted, there are 52 total parking stalls provided for the
convenience store, including three (3) ADA handicapped accessible space. Per Section 10-16-3 of the
Yorkville Zoning Code, the total required minimum parking needed for the commercial convenience store
is 17 spaces, which is exceeded by the 52 on-site spaces provided. The typical stall and drive aisle
dimensions meet the minimum zoning standards.

Due to the overall gross floor area of the C-Store, the petitioner is not required to locate a loading berth as
designated in Section 10-16-9. The petitioner has indicated most convenience store deliveries will occur
via box trucks which can be easily accommodated onsite within an area to the rear of the building without
interfering with onsite traffic and parking.

The petitioner meets the required parking lot setback of 20 feet from arterial roadways (IL Rte. 47 and IL
Rte. 71), per Section 10-7-1 of the Zoning Ordinance, as indicated below:

REQUIRED PROPOSED PARKING LOT
PARKING LOT SETBACK MINIMUM SETBACK
IL Rte. 47 — West (Arterial) 20 +/- 40°
IL Rte. 71- South (Arterial) 20° +/- 120°

Appearance Code
The petitioner has submitted elevations and renderings which illustrate that the project will comply with
the City’s Appearance Code (Section 8-15-5):

Criteria for Appearance of the City Code, new non-residential structures shall have at least fifty
percent (50%) of the total building constructed of masonry products or precast concrete
incorporated as follows:

i. Front Facade: At least 50% shall incorporate masonry products or precast
concrete.

ii. Any other facade that abuts a street shall incorporate masonry products or
precast concrete.



Signage

The petitioner has not provided elevations of proposed ground monument signage on the site plan but has
indicated two (2) monument signs will be located on the site. One at the northeast corner of IL Rte. 47 &
L Rte. 71 and another at the southeast corner of the site facing IL Rte. 71. However, the proposed overall
heights of the signs are 7°-10” and overall sign area is approximately 53 square feet, which meets the
current sign regulations.

Driveways

Per Section 10-16-3-D of the Yorkville Zoning Ordinance, nonresidential driveways shall be a minimum
of two hundred feet (200" when from the driveway edge to the nearest intersecting street right of way
line. The proposed driveways/access points meet this standard. However, lllinois Department of
Transportation (IDOT) permits are needed for the connections to Illinois Routes 71 and 47. The City
Engineer has requested to review the written comments from IDOT on the acceptance of the location of
the entrances be provided by the petitioner.

Lighting

A photometric plan has been provided of the proposed light standards to be installed within the parking
lot area. Maximum illumination at the property line shall not exceed 0.1 foot-candle and no glare shall
spill onto adjacent properties or rights of way. Any lighting used to illuminate off-street parking areas
shall be directed away from residential properties and public highways in such a way as not to create a
nuisance. The City of Yorkville promotes the "dark sky" concept therefore, lighting fixtures should be full
cutoff, and the use of wall packs on buildings should be minimized.

Truck Turning Template

A vehicle tracking template demonstrating the maneuverability of standard sized semitrucks within the
site layout has been provided. The plans illustrate semitrucks adequately entering and existing the site
from IL Routes 47 and 71 to access the diesel fuel pumps in the rear of the property. There does not
appear to be any issues with semitruck and passenger vehicle conflicts, as additional semitruck parking is
provided in the northeast corner of the site, away from the convenience store and gasoline pumps.

Sidewalks/Share Paths

Currently, no sidewalks are located along IL Rte. 47 and IL Rte. 71. All future sidewalks along IL Rte. 71
will occur as part of future IDOT roadway improvements. Additionally, a future shared path is proposed
along IL Rte. 47 as part of IDOT roadway improvements. The petitioner will provide an asphalt path
connection to the gas station development.

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN:

The 2016 Comprehensive Plan designates this for Destination Commercial (DC). This land use is
designated for small to medium scale auto-oriented commercial uses, such as retail centers and restaurants
located near residential areas. Additionally, this land use should have landscaping treatments between
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front parking lots and rights-of-way as well as containing high quality signage which is scaled
appropriately. Therefore, the proposed use is consistent with the designated future land use plan.

ENGINEERING/LANDSCAPE PLAN REVIEW:

The City Engineer has reviewed the plans and continues to work with the petitioner in updating the plans
as comments are given. All requests made will be required as a condition of the special use request.

STANDARDS FOR GRANTING A SPECIAL USE:

Section 10-4-9-F of the City’s Zoning Ordinance establishes standards for special use requests. These
standards shall apply to the request for Special Use authorization of a fuel/gasoline service station. No
special use shall be recommended by the Planning and Zoning Commission unless said commission shall
find that:

1. The establishment, maintenance or operation of the special use will not be unreasonably
detrimental to or endanger the public health, safety, morals, comfort, or general welfare.

2. The special use will not be injurious to the use and enjoyment of other property in the immediate
vicinity for the purpose already permitted, nor substantially diminish and impair property values
within the neighborhood.

3. The establishment of the special use will not impede the normal and orderly development and
improvement of surrounding property for uses permitted in the district.

4. Adequate utilities, access roads, drainage or other necessary facilities have been or are being
provided.

5. Adequate measures have been or will be taken to provide ingress or egress so designed as to
minimize traffic congestion in the public streets.

6. The special use shall in all other respects conform to the applicable regulations of the district in
which it is located, except as such regulations may in each instance be modified by the City
Council pursuant to the recommendations of the Planning and Zoning Commission.

The petitioner has provided written responses to these standards as part of their application (see
attached) and requests inclusion of those responses into the public record at the October 11, 2023
Planning and Zoning Commission meeting.

STAFF COMMENTS:

Staff is supportive of the requested special use authorization for a gas station and convenience store
proposed by the QuikTrip Corporation. The petitioner has provided staff with all the required documents
and is completing additional requests by staff. Therefore, staff recommends that as a condition of the
special use request, the petitioner must comply with all review comments provided by EEI in
memorandums dated June 28, 2023, August 2, 2023, August 7, 2023, and September 7, 2023.

PROPOSED MOTION:

In consideration of testimony presented during a Public Hearing on October 11, 2023 and approval of
the findings of fact, the Planning and Zoning Commission recommends approval to the City Council of
a request for Special Use authorization for a fuel/gasoline service station with a convenience store to
be located at 107 E. Stagecoach Trail subject to engineering review comments provided by the City’s
consultant, EEI, Inc., in letters dated June 28, 2023, August 2, 2023, August 7, 2023, and September 7,
2023 and further subject to {insert any additional conditions of the Planning and Zoning
Commission}...




ATTACHMENTS:

N~ E

13.
14.
15.
16.
17.
18.
19.
20.
21.

Petitioner Application

Overall Site Plan prepared by Midwest Design Group, dated 08-31-2023 (Sheet C010)
Demolition Plan prepared by Midwest Design Group, dated 08-31-2023 (Sheet C030)

Site Plan prepared by Midwest Design Group, dated 08-31-2023 (Sheet C100)

Signage Plan prepared by Midwest Design Group, dates 08-31-2023 (Sheet C101)

Vehicle Tracking Plan prepared by Midwest Design Group, dated 08-31-2023 (Sheet C102)
Grading Plan prepared by Midwest Design Group, dated 08-31-2023 (Sheet C110)

Preliminary Storm Sewer Plan prepared by Midwest Design Group, dated 08-31-2023 (Sheet
C120)

Landscape Plan prepared by Midwest Design Group, dated 08-31-2023 (Sheet L100)

. Tree Preservation Plan prepared by Midwest Design Group, dated 08-31-23 (Sheet C031)
11.
12.

Photometric Site Plan prepared by Midwest Design Group, dated 08-31-23 (Sheet C160)
Preliminary Stormwater Drainage Letter prepared by Midwest Design Group, dated August 30,
2023

ALTA/NSPS Land Title Survey prepared by Farnsworth Group, date plotted 03/29/2023
Building and Canopy Elevations (3 pages) prepared by QuikTrip dated 05.26.23
QuikTrip Corporation business profile

QuikTrip Environmental Sustainability Review 2019

Plan Council Memo dated August 8, 2023

Letter from EEI dated September 7, 2023

Letter from EEI dated August 7, 2023

Letter from EEI dated August 2, 2023

Letter from EEI dated June 28, 2023
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August 30, 2023

City of Yorkville, lllinois

Community Development Department

Attn: Krysti Barksdale-Noble
Community Development Director
651 Prairie Pointe Dr.
Yorkville, IL 60560

Re: QuikTrip Store No. 7318 Preliminary Stormwater Drainage Letter
107 E Stagecoach Trail, Yorkville, Kendall County, lllinois 60560

Ms. Barksdale-Noble,

The purpose of this Preliminary Stormwater Drainage Letter is to preliminarily analyze the impacts of
the proposed QuikTrip improvements to determine detention requirements to meet the criteria set by
the Kendall County Stormwater Management Ordinance. It is our understanding that this analysis has
been requested for initial site plan approval. A complete Stormwater Management Report will be
provided with the full plan submittal.

Methodology

The drainage characteristics of the site were evaluated and analyzed based on the Kendall County
Stormwater Management Ordinance. Per the ordinance, the 100-year storm event shall not exceed
0.15 cfs/acre of hydrologically disturbed area and the 2-year storm event shall not exceed 0.04 cfs/acre
of hydrologically disturbed area. Hydrologic calculations were performed, and detention requirements
were determined using the Autodesk Hydraflow Hydrographs program (SCS Method). The lllinois State
Water Survey (ISWS) Bulletin 75 rainfall data for the Northeast Region was used with a Huff 3™ Quartile
rainfall distribution.

Existing Conditions

The existing property is mostly developed with approximately 141,698 sf of gravel drives and parking,
approximately 2,825 sf of concrete pavement, and approximately 15,775 sf of buildings. It is bordered
on the north by a commercial property (Kendall County Highway Department), on the east by an
agricultural property, on the south by Stagecoach Trail (IL-71), and on the west by S Bridge Street (IL-
47). This property is currently zoned B-3, General Business District.

In the existing conditions, the existing buildings sit at a high point with majority of the site generally
draining southeast to northwest to the public storm sewer along S Bridge Street (IL-47). The part of the
property between the buildings and the east property line drains generally south to north. There does
not appear to be an existing storm sewer system on site. Ultimately, per the USGS mapping system, all
runoff from the site will drain to Fox River.

P.O. Box 860015
Shawnee, KS 66286
Tel: 913-248-9385
www.mdg-kc.com



Proposed Conditions

The proposed development will be graded to generally maintain existing drainage patterns and outlet
points. Stormwater runoff from the QuikTrip site will be collected in a private storm sewer system that
will convey runoff to an underground detention facility. The tributary area to the detention facility will
be approximately 183,555 sf (4.214 acres). This detained area will consist of approximately 117,583 sf
of impervious area (64.1%) and 65,972 sf of pervious area (35.9%). The rest of the site will consist of
approximately 31,627 sf of undisturbed area and 24,712 sf of uncontrolled area.

Due to the existing topography of the site, we will be requesting a variance for the uncontrolled runoff.
The uncontrolled areas will be limited to perimeter grading to allow for an access drive to be
constructed along S Bridge Street (IL-47) and to tie back into the existing grading along the north and
east property lines. This uncontrolled runoff will not be included in the analysis to determine required
detention volume and post-developed release rates.

Per the National Resources Conservation Service mapping system, the property consists of soils within
the Hydrologic Soils Group (HSG) C. Therefore, the analysis area was conservatively assumed to be HSG
D soils, which results in a Curve Number (CN) of 80 for pervious areas and 98 for impervious areas, per
the USDA Urban Hydrology for Small Watersheds TR-55 manual. A post-development runoff coefficient
and Curve Number (CN) was calculated for the detained area using the NRCS Soils Report and TR-55
runoff coefficient tables. The weighted Curve Number for the proposed site is 91.5.

The underground detention facility will have a control structure to reduce peak runoff from the
proposed improvements to allowable rates. The outlet pipe from the control structure will convey
runoff to an existing manhole on the south side of the access drive along S Bridge Street (IL-47). The
on-site private storm sewer system will be designed to convey the 100-year design storm to the
detention facility. The proposed storm sewer system, detention facility, and associated calculations
are included in the Appendix.

Refer to Post-Developed Drainage Map in the Appendix for more details.

P.O. Box 860015
Shawnee, KS 66286
Tel: 913-248-9385
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Detention Requirements

Per the Kendall County Stormwater Management Ordinance, Section 203.2, sufficient storage volume
shall be provided so that the proposed project will not discharge at a rate greater than 0.15 cfs/acre of
disturbance for the 100-year storm event and a rate greater than 0.04 cfs/acre of disturbance for the
2-year storm event. Stormwater, from the improved areas of the property, will be detained in the
proposed underground detention pond. Peak discharges will be controlled with staged orifices inside
the outlet structure. Additional detention information and design calculations can be found in the
Appendix.

The following summary table presents the results of the analysis:

Allowable vs Post-Developed Release Rates Summary

Allowable Post-Developed Release
Storm .
Release Rate Rate w/ Detention
Event
(cfs) (cfs)
2-year 0.17 0.11
100-year 0.63 0.61
Conclusion

The QuikTrip Store No. 7318 development will comply with the design parameters set forth by the City
of Yorkville and by the Kendall County Stormwater Management Ordinance. The on-site stormwater
detention facility has been designed to control the peak stormwater runoff from the site. A private
stormwater drainage system will convey runoff to the stormwater detention facility. No adverse
effects are expected on adjacent properties or downstream drainage systems after the proposed
improvements are completed.

Refer to the Appendix for exhibits and calculations.

If you have any additional questions or need additional information, please contact jonathon@mdg-
kc.com or 469-525-1891.

Sincerely,

Jonathon Smith, P.E.
Project Manager

/“'_ -
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. . '/,* “x")\'ss~
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“tonniant August 30, 2023
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QuikTrip Store No. 7318
Preliminary Stormwater Drainage Letter

107 E Stagecoach Trail
Yorkville, Kendall County, lllinois 60560

APPENDIX
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QuikTrip Store No. 7318
Preliminary Stormwater Drainage Letter

107 E Stagecoach Trail
Yorkville, Kendall County, Illinois 60560

AutoDesk Hydrographs Results
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Watershed Model Schematic

Hydraflow Hydrographs Extension for Autodesk® Civil 3D® by Autodesk, Inc. v2023

EtjA-1

2 - UG Detention -

Project: \DESKTOP-HIMC8GB\Civil 3D Projects\QT7318 Yorkville, IL\Calculations\Hydrograpks@H2 388-38 /(02318 Yorkville Hydrc




Hydraflow Rainfall Report

Hydraflow Hydrographs Extension for Autodesk® Civil 3D® by Autodesk, Inc. v2023

Precip. file name: \DESKTOP-HIMC8GB\Documents\IL Northeast Precip (Bulletin 75-HUFF) Depths.pcp

Rainfall Precipitation Table (in)

Storm

Distribution 1-yr 2-yr 3-yr 5-yr 10-yr 25-yr 50-yr 100-yr
SCS 24-hour 0.00 0.00 0.00 3.30 0.00 5.77 5.83 0.00
SCS 6-Hr 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 4.33 0.00
Huff-1st 0.00 0.00 0.00 2.75 0.00 5.38 6.50 0.00
Huff-2nd 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Huff-3rd 0.00 3.34 0.00 0.00 5.15 0.00 0.00 8.57
Huff-4th 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Huff-Indy 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Custom 0.00 0.00 0.00 2.80 0.00 5.25 6.00 0.00

Tuesday, 08 / 29/ 2023



Pond Report

4

Hydraflow Hydrographs Extension for Autodesk® Civil 3D® by Autodesk, Inc. v2023

Pond No. 1 - Detention

Pond Data

Contours -User-defined contour areas. Conic method used for volume calculation. Begining Elevation = 714.00 ft

Stage / Storage Table

Tuesday, 08 / 29 /2023

Stage (ft) Elevation (ft) Contour area (sqft) Incr. Storage (cuft) Total storage (cuft)

0.00 714.00 21,000 0 0

1.00 715.00 21,000 20,998 20,998

2.00 716.00 21,000 20,998 41,996

3.00 717.00 21,000 20,998 62,994

4.00 718.00 21,000 20,998 83,992
Culvert / Orifice Structures Weir Structures

[A] [B] [C] [PrfRsr] [A] [B] [C] [D]

Rise (in) = 2.00 3.25 0.00 0.00 Crest Len (ft) = 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Span (in) = 2.00 3.25 0.00 0.00 Crest El. (ft) = 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
No. Barrels =1 1 0 0 Weir Coeff. = 3.33 3.33 3.33 3.33
Invert El. (ft) = 714.00 715.50 0.00 0.00 Weir Type = -
Length (ft) = 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Multi-Stage = No No No No
Slope (%) = 0.00 0.00 0.00 n/a
N-Value = .013 .013 .013 n/a
Orifice Coeff. = 0.60 0.60 0.60 0.60 Exfil.(in/hr) = 0.000 (by Contour)
Multi-Stage = nla No No No TW Elev. (ft) = 0.00

Stage Storage

ft cuft
0.00 0
1.00 20,998
2.00 41,996
3.00 62,994

4.00

83,992

Elevation

ft

714.00
715.00
716.00
717.00
718.00

Note: Culvert/Orifice outflows are analyzed under inlet (ic) and outlet (oc) control. Weir risers checked for orifice conditions (ic) and submergence (s).

Stage / Storage / Discharge Table

CivA
cfs

0.00

0.10ic
0.15ic
0.18ic
0.21ic

CivB
cfs

0.00
0.00
0.17 ic
0.32ic
0.43ic

CivC
cfs

PrfRsr WrA
cfs cfs

Wr B
cfs

Wr C
cfs

Wr D
cfs

Exfil
cfs

User
cfs

Total
cfs



Pond Report

Hydraflow Hydrographs Extension for Autodesk® Civil 3D® by Autodesk, Inc. v2023

Pond No. 1 - Detention
Pond Data

Contours -User-defined contour areas. Conic method used for volume calculation. Begining Elevation = 714.00 ft

Stage / Storage Table

Tuesday, 08 / 29 /2023

Stage (ft) Elevation (ft) Contour area (sqft) Incr. Storage (cuft) Total storage (cuft)

0.00 714.00 21,000 0 0

1.00 715.00 21,000 20,998 20,998

2.00 716.00 21,000 20,998 41,996

3.00 717.00 21,000 20,998 62,994

4.00 718.00 21,000 20,998 83,992
Culvert / Orifice Structures Weir Structures

[A] [B] [C] [PrfRsr] [A] [B] [C] [D]

Rise (in) = 2.00 3.25 0.00 0.00 Crest Len (ft) = 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Span (in) = 2.00 3.25 0.00 0.00 Crest El. (ft) = 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
No. Barrels =1 1 0 0 Weir Coeff. = 3.33 3.33 3.33 3.33
Invert El. (ft) = 714.00 715.50 0.00 0.00 Weir Type = - -— -—
Length (ft) = 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Multi-Stage = No No No No
Slope (%) = 0.00 0.00 0.00 n/a
N-Value = .013 .013 .013 n/a
Orifice Coeff. = 0.60 0.60 0.60 0.60 Exfil.(in/hr) = 0.000 (by Contour)
Multi-Stage = nla No No No TW Elev. (ft) = 0.00

Note: Culvert/Orifice outflows are analyzed under inlet (ic) and outlet (oc) control. Weir risers checked for orifice conditions (ic) and submergence (s).

Stage (ft) Stage / Storage Elev (ft)
4.00 / 718.00
3.00 /,/ 717.00
2.00 // 716.00
1.00 // 715.00
0.00 714.00

0 8,000 16,000 24,000 32,000 40,000 48000 56,000 64,000 72,000 80,000 88,000
Storage (cuft)

Storage



Pond Report

Hydraflow Hydrographs Extension for Autodesk® Civil 3D® by Autodesk, Inc. v2023 Tuesday, 08 / 29 /2023
Pond No. 1 - Detention
Pond Data

Contours -User-defined contour areas. Conic method used for volume calculation. Begining Elevation = 714.00 ft

Stage / Storage Table

Stage (ft) Elevation (ft) Contour area (sqft) Incr. Storage (cuft) Total storage (cuft)

0.00 714.00 21,000 0 0

1.00 715.00 21,000 20,998 20,998

2.00 716.00 21,000 20,998 41,996

3.00 717.00 21,000 20,998 62,994

4.00 718.00 21,000 20,998 83,992
Culvert / Orifice Structures Weir Structures

[A] [B] [C] [PrfRsr] [A] [B] [C] [D]

Rise (in) = 2.00 3.25 0.00 0.00 Crest Len (ft) = 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Span (in) = 2.00 3.25 0.00 0.00 Crest El. (ft) = 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
No. Barrels =1 1 0 0 Weir Coeff. = 3.33 3.33 3.33 3.33
Invert El. (ft) = 714.00 715.50 0.00 0.00 Weir Type = - -— -—
Length (ft) = 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Multi-Stage = No No No No
Slope (%) = 0.00 0.00 0.00 n/a
N-Value = .013 .013 .013 n/a
Orifice Coeff. = 0.60 0.60 0.60 0.60 Exfil.(in/hr) = 0.000 (by Contour)
Multi-Stage = nla No No No TW Elev. (ft) = 0.00

Note: Culvert/Orifice outflows are analyzed under inlet (ic) and outlet (oc) control. Weir risers checked for orifice conditions (ic) and submergence (s).

Stage (ft) Stage / Discharge Elev (ft)

4.00 718.00

3.00 " 717.00

2.00 7 716.00

1.00 715.00
0.00 714.00
0.00 0.07 0.14 0.21 0.28 0.35 0.42 0.49 0.56 0.63 0.70
Discharge (cfs)

Total Q



Hydrograph Report

Hydraflow Hydrographs Extension for Autodesk® Civil 3D® by Autodesk, Inc. v2023

Hyd. No. 1

DA-1

Hydrograph type = SCS Runoff
Storm frequency = 2yrs

Time interval = 2min
Drainage area = 4.214 ac
Basin Slope = 0.0%

Tc method = User

Total precip. = 3.341in
Storm duration = 24.00 hrs

Peak discharge
Time to peak
Hyd. volume
Curve number
Hydraulic length
Time of conc. (Tc)
Distribution
Shape factor

Tuesday, 08 / 29 /2023

1.308 cfs
15.60 hrs
34,943 cuft
91.5

0 ft

5.00 min
Huff-3rd
484

DA-1
Q (cfs) Hyd. No. 1 - 2 Year Q (cfs)
2.00 2.00
1.00 1.00
0.00 ~ 0.00
0 2 4 6 8 10 12 14 16 18 20 22 24 26
Time (hrs)



Hydrograph Report

Hydraflow Hydrographs Extension for Autodesk® Civil 3D® by Autodesk, Inc. v2023 Tuesday, 08 / 29 /2023
Hyd. No. 2
UG Detention
Hydrograph type = Reservoir Peak discharge = 0.121 cfs
Storm frequency = 2yrs Time to peak = 24.07 hrs
Time interval = 2 min Hyd. volume = 27,750 cuft
Inflow hyd. No. = 1-DA1 Max. Elevation = 71542 ft
Reservoir name = Detention Max. Storage = 29,815 cuft
Storage Indication method used.
UG Detention
Q (cfs) Hyd. No. 2 - 2 Year Q (cfs)
2.00 2.00
1.00 1.00
0.00 - 0.00
0 10 20 30 40 50 60 70 80 90 100
Time (hrs)

e Hyd No. 2 e Hyd No. 1 [T | Total storage used = 29,815 cuft



Hydrograph Report

Hydraflow Hydrographs Extension for Autodesk® Civil 3D® by Autodesk, Inc. v2023

Tuesday, 08 / 29 /2023

Hyd. No. 1
DA-1
Hydrograph type = SCS Runoff Peak discharge = 3.627 cfs
Storm frequency = 100 yrs Time to peak = 15.60 hrs
Time interval = 2min Hyd. volume = 108,243 cuft
Drainage area = 4.214 ac Curve number = 91.5
Basin Slope = 0.0% Hydraulic length = 0ft
Tc method = User Time of conc. (Tc) = 5.00 min
Total precip. = 8.57in Distribution = Huff-3rd
Storm duration = 24.00 hrs Shape factor = 484
DA-1
Q (cfs) Hyd. No. 1 - 100 Year Q (cfs)
4.00 4.00
3.00 3.00
2.00 2.00
1.00 J 1.00
0.00 / J 0.00
0 2 6 8 10 12 14 16 18 20 22 24 26
Time (hrs)



Hydrograph Report

Hydraflow Hydrographs Extension for Autodesk® Civil 3D® by Autodesk, Inc. v2023

Hyd. No. 2
UG Detention

Tuesday, 08 / 29 /2023

Hydrograph type = Reservoir Peak discharge = 0.630 cfs
Storm frequency = 100 yrs Time to peak = 24.03 hrs
Time interval = 2 min Hyd. volume = 89,916 cuft
Inflow hyd. No. = 1-DA1 Max. Elevation = 717.96 ft
Reservoir name = Detention Max. Storage = 83,133 cuft
Storage Indication method used.
UG Detention
Q (cfs) Hyd. No. 2 -- 100 Year Q (cfs)
4.00 4.00
3.00 3.00
2.00 2.00
1.00 1.00
\
0.00 - 0.00
0 10 20 30 40 50 60 70 80 90 100
Time (hrs)

e Hyd No. 2 e Hyd No. 1 [T | Total storage used = 83,133 cuft



QuikTrip Store No. 7318
Preliminary Stormwater Drainage Letter

107 E Stagecoach Trail
Yorkville, Kendall County, Illinois 60560

Exhibits
Plan Sheets

P.O. Box 860015
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SITE DEVELOPMENT DATA
ZONING B3
TOTAL EXISTING 5.5072 ACRES
LAND AREA 239,894 S.F. —
R/W DEDICATION 0 ACRES S et
LAND AREA 0 SF.
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United City of Yorkville
651 Prairie Pointe Drive
Yorkville, Hlinois 60560
Telephone: 630-553-4350
Fax: 630-553-7575

PLAN COUNCIL AGENDA

Thursday, August 10, 2023
9:00 a.m.

City Hall
Community Development
2" Floor - Conference Room
Remote Access via Zoom

1. Minutes for approval: July 13, 2023
2. PZC 2023-08 QuikTrip Gas Station & Convenience Store — Special Use

Adjournment



Memorandum

To: Plan Council
From: Krysti Barksdale-Noble, Community Development Director
Date: July 10, 2023
Subject: PC 2023-08 QuikTrip Gasoline (Special Use)
107 E. Stagecoach Trl. - Proposed New Fuel Station & Convenience Store

I have reviewed the application for Special Use approval received June 7, 2023 as submitted by

Ali Bukhres, on behalf of QuikTrip Corporation, Petitioner, as well as the following documents/plans:

Nogkr~wdE

o

9.

10.

Overall Site Plan prepared by Midwest Design Group, dated 05-22-2023 (Sheet C010);
Demolition Plan prepared by Midwest Design Group, dated 05-22-2023 (Sheet C030);

Site Plan prepared by Midwest Design Group, dated 05-22-2023 (Sheet C100);

Signage Plan prepared by Midwest Design Group, dates 05-22-2023 (Sheet C101);

Vehicle Tracking Plan prepared by Midwest Design Group, dated 05-22-2023 (Sheet C102);
Grading Plan prepared by Midwest Design Group, dated 05-22-2023 (Sheet C110);
Preliminary Storm Sewer Plan prepared by Midwest Design Group, dated 05-22-2023 (Sheet
C120);

Landscape Plan prepared by Midwest Design Group, dated 05-22-2023 (Sheet L100);
ALTA/NSPS Land Title Survey prepared by Farnsworth Group, date plotted 03/29/2023; and
Building and Canopy Elevations (3 pages) prepared by QuikTrip dated 05.26.23.

The petitioner is seeking special use permit authorization of a proposed new fuel station and

convenience store building to be constructed on approximately 5.51-acres of land located at the northeast
corner of IL Route 47 (Bridge Street) and IL Route 71 (Stagecoach Trail). The property consists of two
(2) parcels with the western parcel (05-04-400-050) being utilized for the fuel station and convenience

store.

This property is currently improved with various detached metal structures on a gravel foundation

utilized for industrial/farming storage and truck related services, which will be demolished upon
development of the fuel station. The property was recently rezoned from M-1 Manufacturing to B-3
General Business District as part of the Graham’s C Store Development proposal. Based upon my review
of the application and preliminary plans, | have compiled the following comments:

GENERAL ZONING/PLANNING COMMENTS:

1. ZONING - The subject property is currently zoned as B-3 General Business District. The
following are the current immediate surrounding zoning and land uses:

Zoning Land Use
North B3'.SU Kendall County Highway Department
(Unincorporated Kendall County)

Silver Dollar Restaurant
South B-3 General Business District All Season Motel

Transportation Land Use (IL Route 71)
East M-1 Limited Manufacturing District | Undeveloped Agricultural Land
West B-3 Business District Transportation Land Use (IL Route 47)

Fountain Village Commercial Development




2. BUILDING SETBACKS - Staff notes that the petitioner has depicted the following
property’s building setback locations for the development:

BUILDING SETBACK REQUIRED PROPOSED SETBACK
MINIMUM
Interior Side Yard (North) 200 +/- 160’ (C Store) Verify
+/- 200’ (Gas Pump Canopy) Verify
Front Yard (West/IL 47) 50 +/- 120’ (C Store) Verify
Corner Side Yard (South/IL 71) 30’ +/- 320’ (C Store) Verify
+/- 240" (Gas Pump Canopy) Verify
Rear Yard (East) 20’ +/- Unable to Determine Verify

a. Will the parcels be consolidated as part of the purchase? This will determine the
rear yard building setback. Petitioner must provide dimensions for all other
setbacks indicated above.

3. MAXIMUM BUILDING HEIGHT - Maximum building height for the B-3 District is 80
feet. The overall height of the primary building (convenience store) is 20 feet to the top of the
cornice and 16 feet to the top of the masonry. Per Section 10-2-3, building height is measured
at the mean height between the eaves and ridge.

a. Staff calculated the total square footage of the convenience store as ~5,728.8
square feet (92.4° x 627). Petitioner must provide/verify the actual proposed
building square footage.

4. PARKING - According to the data table on the Site Plans submitted, there are 52 total
parking stalls provided for the convenience store, including three (3) ADA handicapped
accessible space. Per Section 10-16-3 of the Yorkville Zoning Code, the total required
minimum parking needed for the commercial convenience store is 17 spaces, which is
exceeded by the 52 on-site spaces provided. The typical stall and drive aisle dimensions meet
the minimum zoning standards.

a. Petitioner shall revise the Site Plan to include a data table of the required and
provided parking stalls, including ADA spaces.

b. Staff notes there are five (5) parking stalls within the northeast corner of the
site. Are these for semi-trucks? If so, please add to the parking data table on the
Site Plan.

5. PARKING SETBACKS - The applicant appears to have met the required minimum parking
lot setback of 20 feet from arterial roadways (IL Rte. 47 and IL Rte. 71) for the proposed
development, as follows:

PARKING LOT REQUIRED PROPOSED PARKING LOT
SETBACK MINIMUM SETBACK
IL Rte. 47 — West 20° +/- 40’ (Please Verify)
(Arterial)
IL Rte. 71- South (Arterial) 20’ +/- 220’ (Please Verify)

Per Section 10-2-3 of the Yorkville Zoning Ordinance, “Parking Area, Private” is an open,
hard surfaced area, other than a street or public way for the storage of private passenger




10.

11.

vehicles. “Driveway” is defined as a paved or unpaved private roadway providing vehicular
access between the right of way of the street and a parking space (storage area).

PARKING LOT SCREENING - All open automobile parking areas shall comply with the
requirements of the current landscape ordinance regulations for perimeter parking lot
landscaping. Code Reference:

https://library.municode.com/il/yorkville/codes/code of ordinances?nodeld=TITSBURE CH
12L AOR_8-12-2L ATRPRRE

LOADING ZONE - Is a designated loading zone area provided for convenience and food
delivery services? Per Section 10-2-3, Off-Street Loading and Unloading Spaces shall be
exclusive of access aisles and maneuvering space.

MAXIMUM LOT COVERAGE - Per Section 10-7-1 of the Yorkville Zoning Code, the
maximum lot coverage for the B-3 General Business District (inclusive of sidewalks, parking
areas and all impervious surfaces) is 80%.

a. The Petitioner needs to provide a Site Data Table that indicates the maximum
impervious coverage.

BUILDING ELEVATIONS - The prepared elevations appear to meet the minimum
Appearance Code Standards.

a. Code Reference:
https://library.municode.com/il/yorkville/codes/code of ordinances?nodeld=TIT8B
URE CHI15APCO 8-15-5CRAP

SIGNAGE - The petitioner has not provided elevations of proposed ground monument
signage on the site plan but has indicated two (2) monument signs will be located on the site.
One at the northeast corner of IL Rte. 47 & L Rte. 71 and another at the southeast corner of
the site facing IL Rte. 71.

a. Per Section 10-20-9-A of the Yorkville Zoning Ordinance, free standing monument
signs on lots three (3) acres or larger with more than one street frontage, one
freestanding sign sixty-four (64) square feet or less in area and twelve feet (12°) or
less in height per street frontage with an entrance/exit is allowed.

i. The proposed overall heights of the signs are 7°-10” which meets the
current sign regulations. However, clarification regarding the proposed
sign area is needed, as it appears to be approximately 77 square feet
which exceeds the maximum area of 64 sq. feet. Information on Signage
Plan states 7’10”"H x 11°’W x 53.1 sq. ft.

b. Staff also notes there are direction signs for trucks. Are these signs indication where
trucks should ingress/egress? More information regarding size and height of signs is

requested.

DRIVEWAYS - Per Section 10-16-3-D of the Yorkville Zoning Ordinance, Nonresidential
driveways shall be a minimum of two hundred feet (200') when from the driveway edge to
the nearest intersecting street right of way line. Driveways not meeting the minimum
distances may be approved administratively by the city administrator with a recommendation
to approve made by the city engineer. If administrative approval is not granted, a variance
must be approved. The proposed plan meets this standard. However, staff has the following
concerns:

a. Consider providing a “Do Not Block Entrance” sign at the southern driveway
entrance near IL Rte. 71 to avoid potential conflicts with vehicles in turning lanes



https://library.municode.com/il/yorkville/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT8BURE_CH12LAOR_8-12-2LATRPRRE
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12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

exiting the gas station site as this appears to be the prime ingress/egress access point
for semi-trucks.

LIGHTING - A photometric plan has been provided along with manufacturers cut sheets of
the proposed light standards to be installed within the parking lot area. Maximum
illumination at the property line shall not exceed 0.1 foot-candle and no glare shall spill onto
adjacent properties or rights of way.

a. Any lighting used to illuminate off-street parking areas shall be directed away from
residential properties and public highways in such a way as not to create a nuisance.
The City of Yorkville promotes the "dark sky" concept. Lighting fixtures should be
full cutoff, and the use of wall packs on buildings should be minimized.

b. Petitioner shall provide a photometric plan.

OUTDOOR SALES AND DISPLAY AREAS - Due to the proposed use as a gas station
with retail convenience store, staff assumes there will be outdoor sales and display areas
located on the property. Therefore, the following provisions of the Zoning Ordinance shall

apply:
a. Per Section 10-3-10-F of the Yorkville Zoning Code, outdoor sales and display areas
shall not exceed 35% of the gross floor area of the primary building (max 1400 sq. ft

for Lot 102). Staff is seeking confirmation from the Petitioner that the overall area of
the Outdoor Sales area will not exceed 1,400 square feet at any given time.

b. Per Section 10-3-10-H of the Yorkville Zoning Code, outdoor sales, and display
areas, when located on a sidewalk and/or walkway, must allow for an unconstructive
area of 3 feet for pedestrian access and shall not block the ingress or egress of the
building at any time.

TRUCK TURNING TEMPLATE - A truck turning template demonstrating the
maneuverability of standard sized semitrucks within the site layout shall be provided.

TRASH ENCLOSURE - Commercial trash dumpsters and other large waste receptacles
must be screened on three (3) sides with a solid opaque material wall at least six feet (6) in
height or to the extent where the wall screens the dumpster from view. Proposed plans
indicate a 10-foot high all brick trash enclosure with landscaping around the perimeter of the
three (3) solid walls.

LANDSCAPE PLAN - Please refer to comments from Engineer.

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN - Future Land Use for this site is Destination Commercial
(DC) which is consistent with the proposed B-3 General Business District and gas station
land use.

FUTURE SHARED USE TRAIL - The plans should indicate the Future Shared-Use Path
along IL Rte. 47 to be installed by IDOT.

a. Is the Petitioner proposing to add additional asphalt at the intersection of IL
Rte. 47 and IL Rte. 71 connecting the Future Shared-Use Path to the gas station

property?




Engineering Enterprises, Inc.

June 28, 2023

Ms. Krysti Barksdale-Noble
Community Development Director

United City of Yorkville
651 Prairie Pointe Dr.
Yorkville, IL 60560

Re: QuikTrip Gas Station & Convenience Store
Special Use Request — 1' Submittal
United City of Yorkville

Dear Krysti:

We have reviewed the following items for the above referenced project:

e Preliminary Engineering Plans (8 Sheets) dated May 22, 2023, and prepared by Midwest
Design Group.

¢ ALTA /NSPS Land Title Survey
¢ Application for Special Use

e Other supporting documentation

Our review of these plans and reports are to generally determine their compliance with local ordinances
and whether the improvements will conform to existing local systems and equipment. This review and
our comments do not relieve the designer from his duties to conform to all required codes, regulations,
and acceptable standards of engineering practice. Engineering Enterprises, Inc.'s review is not
intended as an in-depth quality assurance review, we cannot and do not assume responsibility for
design errors or omissions in the plans. As such, we offer the following comments:

General
1. The following permits may be required during final engineering and should be provided to the City
when obtained. The City and EEI should be copied on all correspondence with the agencies.

e YBSD approval is needed for the connection of the proposed sanitary lines to the
existing sanitary sewer.

e |EPA permit may be needed for the sanitary sewer service depending on the use and
calculated flow from the development.

e |EPA NPDES General Construction Permit is required. The Notice of intent must be
filed with IEPA 30 days prior to start of construction.

52 Wheeler Road - Sugar Grove, IL 60554 * Tel: 630.466.6700 - Fax: 630.466.6701 - www.eeiweb.com




Ms. Krysti Barksdale-Noble
June 28, 2023
Page 2

e Stormwater permit application in accordance with the Yorkville Storm Water
Management Ordinance (Kendall Countywide Ordinance)

e IDOT permits are needed for the connections to lllinois Routes 71 and 47.
2. The following will need to be submitted with Final Engineering Plans:
a. Truck turning exhibits for emergency vehicles
b. Photometric plan
c. An engineer's estimate needs to be provided and must include all public improvements
within the ROW including utility connections and all soil erosion and sediment control
items. This cost estimate will be used to determine the construction guarantee amount.

In addition, a cost estimate needs to be provided for all site improvements which will be
used to calculate the building permit fees.

d. See the attached Checklist for additional information needed at final engineering.
3. A preliminary stormwater report should be provided.

Preliminary Engineering Plans

C010 — Overall Site Plan

4. IDOT has planned reconstruction of the lllinois Route 71 and lllinois Route 47 intersection. These
proposed improvements should be incorporated into the plans. Contact IDOT for the latest plans.

5. Improvements to lllinois Route 71 and lllinois Route 47 as directed by IDOT for the proposed site
shall be shown. The engineer or developer should provide all correspondence with IDOT as it
relates to the proposed road connections.

6. Add a data table noting the planned parking spaces.

C100 - Site Plan

7. The water main should be extended to the eastern property line for future extension.

8. IDOT's intersection improvements include construction of a shared-use path. The proposed
sidewalk should be extended to the west to connect to the future shared-use path. Contact IDOT
for the latest plans.

9. Consider making the westernmost driveway off IL-71 right-in/right-out only to prevent traffic
backup into the intersection.

C102 — Vehicle Tracking (WB-67)

10. The WB-67 should be shown entering and exiting the site as well as maneuvering through the site
to the fuel pumps.



Ms. Krysti Barksdale-Noble
June 28, 2023

Page 3

L100 — Landscape Plan

11, The comments in the attached review letter from the City's landscaping consultant must be
addressed and a revised landscaping plan submitted.

If you have any questions or require additional information, please contact our office.

Respectfully Submitted,
ENGINEERING ENTERPRISES, INC.

Chief Operating Officer / .President
BPS/tnp/pgw2

pc: Mr. Bart Olson, City Administrator (via email)
Ms. Erin Willrett, Assistant City Administrator (via email)
Mr. Jason Engberg, Senior Planner (via email)
Mr. Eric Dhuse, Director of Public Works (via email)
Mr. Pete Ratos, Building Department (via email)
Ms. Dee Weinert, Admin Assistant (via email)
Ms. Jori Behland, City Clerk (via email)
Mr. Cyrus McMains, YBSD (via email)
Mr. Ali Bukhres, QuikTrip (via email)
TNP, PGW2, EEI (Via e-mail)

\Milkyway\EE|_Storage\Docs\Public\Y orkville\2023Y02325-DR QuikTrip Gas Station and Convenience Store\Development\Final Engineering
and Plat\Docs\Review and Response Letters\icoyReview01 Preliminary.doc



Hey and Associates, Inc.

Engineering, Ecology and Landscape Architecture

8755 W. HIGGINS ROAD, SUITE 853
MILWAUKEE, WISCONSIN CHICAGO, ILLINOIS 60631 Volo, ILLiNOIS
PHONE (773) 693-9200
Fax (773) 693-9200

June 27, 2023

Pamela Whitfield, PE, CFM
Senior Project Engineer |
Engineering Enterprises, Inc.
52 Wheeler Road

Sugar Grove, IL 60554

Project No.: 21-0275 U

Re: Landscape Plan Review
QuickTrip Gas Station & Convenience Store (YO2325)
107 E. Stagecoach Trail

Dear Pamela:

We have completed our first landscape plan review of the proposed QuikTrip Gas Station & Convenience
Store located at 107 E. Stagecoach Trail in Yorkville.

Landscape Plan — NOT RECOMMENDED FOR APPROVAL

For reasons described below, this landscape plan is not recommended for approval at this time. A
response letter from the petitioner which addresses all review comments should be provided with their
next submittal.

REVIEW COMMENTS

Comments must be addressed before landscape plan approval can be recommended. If there are any
changes to the proposed project, additional comments may be provided. Please note that the
requirements of each section are in addition to the requirements of all other sections of the ordinance
(i.e., trees and other plant materials cannot be “double counted” to meet multiple requirements).

Parkway Landscaping

Parkway trees are required along IL Route 47/Bridge Street and IL Route 71 Stagecoach Trail. A minimum
of one tree per 50 linear feet of frontage is required. Therefore, 18 parkway trees are required. If utilities
are a concern, it appears adequate space exists for them to be planted set back closer to the paved area
on site.

Perimeter Landscaping

This site does not abut residential property, so therefore perimeter landscaping requirements do not
apply.
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page 2

Parking Lot Landscaping

Interior: One tree is required for every 20 parking spaces. Therefore, three trees are required. Also, the
plans should specify that all interior parking lot shade trees be limbed to a height of not less than eight
feet to ensure proper visibility within the parking lot.

Perimeter: When a parking lot is adjacent to a public right-of-way, a landscape buffer yard shall be
provided the width of the required parking setback or 30’, whichever is less; the buffer yard shall consist
of one shade tree, one evergreen tree, and 33 shrubs per 100 linear feet. Therefore, 455’ of landscape
buffer yard is required along IL Route 47/Bridge Street and 200’ of buffer yard is required along IL Route
71/Stagecoach Trail.

Lot Landscaping

The petitioner’s calculations on the plan indicate 24 shade trees and 180 shrubs are required based upon
lot size. These plantings are in addition to all other requirements (i.e., plantings cannot be double
counted).

Stormwater Storage Basin Landscaping

No stormwater storage basin was found on the plans; therefore, these requirements are not applicable.

Tree Preservation

Tree Preservation standards apply to all development parcels greater than five acres in area; therefore,
these requirements are applicable to this site. A tree survey showing the location of all trees four inches
and greater including botanical name, common name, size, and condition/health will be required. Tree
replacement may be required as detailed in the Ordinance.

The Demolition Plan indicates all existing trees on site, including those that appear to lie outside of the
limits of construction, are to be removed. It is recommended that the petitioner considers preserving
existing healthy, quality trees where possible. Preserved trees may be counted toward landscape
requirements (e.g., Lot Landscaping) as per section 8-12-3 G. of the Ordinance.

General Standards

The Landscape Schedule should be revised to reflect the minimum size of plan materials specified in the
ordinance.

Shade trees: 2.5” caliper
Evergreen trees: 8’ tall
Ornamental trees: 6’ tall
Shrubs: 24" tall

Ll B

Willow Oak is more of a southern species and not planted in NE IL. Another species should be specified.

Oak and Honeylocust do not meet diversity requirements (max 33% of the total amount of required trees
not of same genus).
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The landscape plan should identify the location, quantity, size, and type (both botanical and common
names) of all existing landscaping to be preserved and removed, and all proposed landscaping.

SUMMARY

This review was based upon the following documents, pursuant to requirements of the City’s Landscape
Ordinance.

e Landscape Plan, sheet L100, prepared by Midwest Design Group Kansas City, dated 5/22/23
e Demolition Plan, sheet C030, prepared by Midwest Design Group Kansas City, dated 5/22/2023

Let us know if there are any questions or comments.
Sincerely,

Tim Pollowy, PLA, ASLA

Senior Landscape Architect



March 23, 2023

UNITED CITY OF YORKYV LLE

GENERAL CHECKLIST FOR COMMERCIAL SITE PLANS/SINGLE LOT DEVELOPMENTS

(EXTERNAL USE ONLY)

Professional engineer signature and seal on drawings and calculations

Location map and address, J.U.L.I.E. note included on plans

Benchmarks based on NAVD 88 datum

Existing utilities and topography to be provided

v Existing elevations and contours shown at 1' intervals

Compliance with subdivision grading plan (if applicable) and/or provide proposed grading plan
v Proposed elevations and contours at 1' intervals

v Indicate building top of foundation (2 ft. above H.W.L.)

v’ Storm water drainage - safe outlet available and adequate conveyance provided
Flood plain or flood way requirements to be addressed, if necessary

Stormwater management

v Per Kendall County/Yorkville stormwater management ordinance

v Apply for storm water permit, if necessary

Provide stormwater pollution prevention (SWPP) plan

v Apply for NOI permit, if necessary

v Note that receipt of NPDES permit required prior to construction

Provide typical pavement sections

Pavement markings and signage

Entrance detail

Handicap ramp detail (use IDOT standard)

Show water service and include City standard details and notes

Show sanitary service with inspection manhole and include YBSD standard notes
Apply for appropriate IEPA permits — water and sanitary, if necessary

Provide easements, if necessary

Provide landscape plan

Provide photometric plan

Compliance with zoning code

Performance guarantee for public improvements

Overall cost estimate for all site improvements — for building permit fees

G:\Public\Yorkville\Ordinances, Standard Notes, Forms and Checklists\Checklists\Single Lot Development Checklist - External.doc



Yorkville Police Department Memorandum
651 Prairie Pointe Drive

Yorkville, lllinois 60560

Telephone: 630-553-4340

Fax: 630-553-1141

Date: June 19, 2023

To: Krysti Barksdale-Noble (Community Development Director)

From: James Jensen (Chief of Police)

Reference: Plan Review — PZC 2023-08 QuikTrip Gas Station & Convenience Store
Project Name: QuikTrip Gas Station & Convenience Store
Applicant Name: Ali Bukhres, QuikTrip
Project Manager:
Project Number: PZC 2023-08

The comments listed below are referenced to the above project:

Signage
Handicapped Signage Required: X _Yes No
Comments: None
**Signage must meet MUTCD Standards
**Fine amount must be listed on sign
Speed Limit Signage Required/Recommended Yes X _No
School Zone Special Signage Yes X _No
Special Speed Zone Signage Requested Yes X _No
Comment: The speed limit on Rt. 47 and Rt. 71 is 45 mph. Attention should
be paid to the vehicles pulling out onto both state highways as vehicles often
time exceed this limit coming through the intersection.
No Parking Signage Recommended? Yes X _No

No Parking After 2” Snow Fall

No Parking Locations:
None

Dedicated Parking signage needed? Yes X _No
Located by Park
School



Yorkville Police Department Memorandum
651 Prairie Pointe Drive

Yorkville, lllinois 60560

Telephone: 630-553-4340

Fax: 630-553-1141

Common Parking Area

Are there Street Name Conflicts? Yes X No
Comments:
Sidewalk/Pedestrian/Bike Path Crossing Signage? Yes No

Comment: Is a sidewalk or bike path going to be constructed? If YES then
attention should be paid to the signage exiting the business warning of the
potential for pedestrians and bicyclists.

NO Construction Traffic Signage being requested? Yes X _No
Location:

**We request that all signage is posted prior to the first occupancy permit being issued for this project. ***
***All traffic control signage must conform to MUTCD Standards specific to location, size, color, and height levels***

Roadway
Street Width:
Should parking be allowed on BOTH sides of road? Yes No
Should parking be restricted to fire hydrant side? Yes No
Center Roadway Medians: Yes No
Limit Parking on Median? Yes No
Signage Needed? Yes No
Room for Emergency Veh. w/ one lane Obstructed? Yes No
Do you have intersection Concerns? Yes No
Landscape
Low Growth or Ground Cover Landscaping? Yes No
Low Growth or Ground Cover Landscaping by windows? X __Yes No

Low Growth or Ground Cover Landscaping by Entrances X __Yes No



Yorkville Police Department Memorandum
651 Prairie Pointe Drive

Yorkville, lllinois 60560

Telephone: 630-553-4340

Fax: 630-553-1141

Ingress /| Eqress

Entrance/Exits match up with adjacent driveways? Yes X _No
Total Entrance/Exits for development? 4

Are vehicle entrance/exits safe? Yes No
Are warning signs for cross traffic requested? X __Yes No
Comment: Due to speed on Rt. 47 & Rt. 71

Raised Median & Signage for Right in & Right Out? Yes X _No
Comment: Will there be right in and right out islands?

Emergency Contact for after hours during construction: Please provide

Is this a gated or controlled access development? Yes X _No
If yes, will police & Fire and Access? Yes No

Miscellaneous

Individual Mailboxes? Yes X _No

Cluster Mailbox Kiosks? Yes X__No
Will this cause traffic choke points? Yes X _No

Are sidewalks being planned for the development? Yes No
Comment: Are sidewalks or bike paths being installed?

Are sidewalk crosswalks needed? Yes No

Are there bike paths planned for this project? Yes No
Proper Signage needed for bike paths Yes No

Stop Signs Yield Signs NO Motorized Vehicles
Trespassing Other
Are there HOA Controlled Roadway OR Parking Areas? Yes No



Yorkville Police Department Memorandum
651 Prairie Pointe Drive

Yorkville, lllinois 60560

Telephone: 630-553-4340

Fax: 630-553-1141

Ample Parking on Site? X _ Yes No
Are there other City Ordinance Concerns? Yes No
Noise Ordinance Parking Ordinances

Alarm Ordinance

Comments:

| hope you find this information helpful, and we look forward to reviewing the revisions. If you should
have any questions, comments or concerns please do not hesitate to contact me.



Engineering Enterprises, Inc.

September 7, 2023

Ms. Krysti Barksdale-Noble
Community Development Director

United City of Yorkville
651 Prairie Pointe Dr.
Yorkville, IL 60560

Re: QuikTrip Gas Station & Convenience Store
Special Use Request — 3™ Submittal
United City of Yorkville

Dear Krysti:

We have reviewed the following items for the above referenced project:

e Preliminary Engineering Plans (10 Sheets) dated August 31, 2023, and prepared by
Midwest Design Group

e Preliminary Stormwater Report dated August 30, 2023, and prepared by Midwest
Design Group

Our review of these plans and reports are to generally determine their compliance with local
ordinances and whether the improvements will conform to existing local systems and
equipment. This review and our comments do not relieve the designer from his duties to
conform to all required codes, regulations, and acceptable standards of engineering practice.
Engineering Enterprises, Inc.’s review is not intended as an in-depth quality assurance review,
we cannot and do not assume responsibility for design errors or omissions in the plans. As
such, we offer the following comments:

General

1. The following permits may be required during final engineering and should be provided to
the City when obtained. The City and EEI should be copied on all correspondence with
the agencies.

e YBSD approval is needed for the connection of the proposed sanitary lines to the
existing sanitary sewer.

e |EPA permit may be needed for the sanitary sewer service depending on the use
and calculated flow from the development.

52 Wheeler Road - Sugar Grove, IL 60554 - Tel: 630.466.6700 - Fax: 630.466.6701 = www.eeiweb.com




Ms. Krysti Barksdale-Noble
September 7, 2023
Page 2

IEPA NPDES General Construction Permit is required. The Notice of Intent must
be filed with IEPA 30 days prior to start of construction.

Stormwater permit application in accordance with the Yorkville Storm Water
Management Ordinance (Kendall Countywide Ordinance)

IDOT permits are needed for the connections to lllinois Routes 71 and 47.
Preli inarv En ineerina Plans

2 The Prel ry Engineering Plan is g rally acce e, and the following comments
should b ressed at Final Engineer For Final ineering, a full engineering plan
set should be submitted.

3 The following will need to be submitted with Final Engineering Plans:
a. Additional information as shown in the previously provided checklist.
b. Truck turning exhibits for emergency vehicles.

c. Final photometric plan with a table sho that average fo int Y,
average to minimum light intensity r itio, maximum to min tin ty
ratios meet the standards in the ordinance.

d. be p d us c
uding c ns n
cost e e us e

construction guarantee amount. In addition, a cost estimate needs to be
provided for all site improvements which will be used to calculate the building
permit fees.

e. Comments from IDOT on the acceptance of the location of the entrances should
be provided.

4  The comments in the attached review letter from the City’s landscaping consultant must
be addressed and a revised landscaping plan submitted with Final Engineering plans.

Prelimi arv Stormwa Manaaeme Report

5  The Preliminary Stormwater Report is generally acceptable. For Final Engineering, a full
stormwater management report should be submitted, and the following comments
addressed.

a. Provide a proposed conditions exhibit that illustrates the 24,712 sq ft area that is
to have uncontrolled runoff. This area should increase the amount of pervious
area in proposed conditions versus existing.

b. Indicate the runoff volume that is intended to be uncontrolled.



Ms. Krysti Barksdale-Noble
September 7, 2023
Page 3

c. It is recommended to include a BMP along the undeveloped area on the east
side to reduce the amount of uncontrolled runoff coming from the property.

If you have any questions or require additional information, please contact our office.

Respectfully Submitted,

ENGINEERING ENTERPRISES, INC.

y

Bradley P. Sanderson, P.E.
Chief Operating Officer / President

BPS/tnp/pgw2

pc:  Mr. Bart Olson, City Administrator (via email)
Ms. Erin Willrett, Assistant City Administrator (via email)
Mr. Eric Dhuse, Director of Public Works (via email)
Mr. Pete Ratos, Building Department (via email)
Ms. Dee Weinert, Admin Assistant (via email)
Ms. Jori Behland, City Clerk (via email)
Mr. Cyrus McMains, YBSD (via email)
Mr. Ali Bukhres, QuikTrip (via email)
TNP, PGW2, EEI (Via e-mail)

WMilkyway\EEI_Storage\Docs\Public\Yorkville\2023\Y02325-DR QuikTrip Gas Station and Convenience Store\Development\Final Engineering
and Plat\Docs\Review and Response Letters\lcoyReview03 Preliminary.doc



Hey and Associates, Inc.

Engineering, Ecology and Landscape Architecture

8755 W. HIGGINS ROAD, SUITE 853
CHICAGO, ILLINOIS 60631
PHONE (773) 693-9200
Fax (773) 693-9200

September 6, 2023

Pamela Whitfield, PE, CFM
Senior Project Engineer II
Engineering Enterprises, Inc.
52 Wheeler Road

Sugar Grove, IL 60554

Project No.: 21-0275U

Re: Landscape Plan Review
QuikTrip Gas Station & Convenience Store (YO2325)
107 E. Stagecoach Trail

Dear Pamela:

We have completed our third landscape plan review of the proposed QuikTrip Gas Station & Convenience
Store located at 107 E. Stagecoach Trail in Yorkville.

Landscape Plan - NOT RECOMMENDED FOR APPROVAL

For reasons described below, this landscape plan is not recommended for approval at this time. A
response letter from the petitioner which addresses all review comments should be provided with their
next submittal.

ReVIEW COMMENTS

Comments must be addressed before landscape plan approval can be recommended. If there are any
changes to the proposed project, additional comments may be provided. Please note that the
requirements of each section are in addition to the requirements of all other sections of the ordinance
(i.e., trees and other plant materials cannot be “double counted” to meet multiple requirements).

Parkway Landscaping

PREVIOUS COMMENTS ADDRESSED.

Perimeter Landscaping

This site does not abut residential property, so therefore perimeter landscaping requirements do not
apply.

Parking Lot Landscaping

PREVIOUS COMMENTS ADDRESSED.



Pamela Whitfield
QuikTrip
September 6, 2023
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Lot Landscaping

PREVIOUS COMMENTS ADDRESSED

Stormwater Storage Basin Landscaping

No stormwater storage basin was found on the plans; therefore, these requirements are not applicable.

Tree Preservation

PREVIOUS COMMENTS PARTIALLY ADDRESSED. A Tree Preservation Plan has been added to the plan set
but required replacement trees have not been provided. It is our understanding that no variance/relief
from tree replacement requirements as detailed in the Ordinance has been granted. Based upon data
included on the Preliminary Tree Preservation Plan, a total of 49 replacement trees are required.
Replacement trees are in addition to those trees required by other sections of the ordinance.

General Standards

PREVIOUS COMMENTS ADDRESSED.
SUMMARY

This review was based upon the following documents, pursuant to requirements of the City’s Landscape
Ordinance.

e Landscape Plan, sheet L100, prepared by Midwest Design Group Kansas City, dated 08-31-2023

e Demolition Plan, sheet C030, prepared by Midwest Design Group Kansas City, dated 08-31-2023

e Preliminary Tree Preservation Plan, sheet C031, prepared by Midwest Design Group Kansas City,
dated 08-31-2023

Let us know if there are any questions or comments.
Sincerely,

Tim Pollowy, PLA, ASLA

Senior Landscape Architect



Engineering Enterprises, Inc.

. II::I”IT”I- j-"

August 7, 2023

Ms. Krysti Barksdale-Noble
Community Development Director

United City of Yorkville
651 Prairie Pointe Dr.
Yorkville, IL 60560

Re: QuikTrip Gas Station & Convenience Store

2" Submittal - Landscape Plan Review
United City of Yorkville

Dear Krysti:

We have reviewed the following items for the above referenced project:
e Preliminary Engineering Plans (9 Sheets) dated July 14, 2023, and prepared by Midwest Design Group

Our review of these plans and reports are to generally determine their compliance with local ordinances and whether
the improvements will conform to existing local systems and equipment. This review and our comments do not relieve
the designer from his duties to conform to all required codes, regulations, and acceptable standards of engineering
practice. Engineering Enterprises, Inc.’s review is not intended as an in-depth quality assurance review, we cannot and
do not assume responsibility for design errors or omissions in the plans. As such, we offer the following comments:

The comments in the attached review letter from the City's landscaping consultant must be addressed and a revised
landscaping plan submitted with Final Engineering plans.

If you have any questions or require additional information, please contact our office.

Respectfully Submitted,

ENGINEERING ENTERPRISES, INC.

Bradley P. Safiderson, P.E.
Chief Operating Officer / President

BPS/tnp/pgw2

pc: Mr. Bart Olson, City Administrator (via email)
Ms. Erin Willrett, Assistant City Administrator (via email)
Mr. Eric Dhuse, Director of Public Works (via email)
Mr. Pete Ratos, Building Department (via email)
Ms. Dee Weinert, Admin Assistant (via email)
Ms. Jori Behland, City Clerk (via email)
Mr. Cyrus McMains, YBSD (via email)
Mr. Ali Bukhres, QuikTrip (via email)
TNP, PGW?2, EEI (Via e-mail)

\Wilkyway\EEI_Storage\Docs\Public\Yorkville\2023\YO02325-DR QuikTrip Gas Station and Convenience Store\Development\Final Engineering
and Plat\Docs\Review and Response Letters\lcoyReview03 Preliminary Landscape.doc

52 Wheeler Road * Sugar Grove, IL 60554 - Tel: 630.466.6700 - Fax: 630.466.6701 = www.eeiweb.com




Hey and Associates, Inc.

Engineering, Ecology and Landscape Architecture

8755 W. HIGGINS ROAD, SUITE 853
Mi11LWAUKEE, WISCONSIN CHICAGO, ILLINOIS 60631 Volo, ILLINOIS
PHONE (773) 693-9200
FAx (773) 693-9200

August 4, 2023

Pamela Whitfield, PE, CFM
Senior Project Engineer ||
Engineering Enterprises, Inc.
52 Wheeler Road

Sugar Grove, IL 60554

Project No.: 21-0275U

Re: Landscape Plan Review
QuickTrip Gas Station & Convenience Store (Y02325)
107 E. Stagecoach Trail

Dear Pamela:

We have completed our second landscape plan review of the proposed QuikTrip Gas Station &
Convenience Store located at 107 E. Stagecoach Trail in Yorkville.

Landscape Plan — NOT RECOMMENDED FOR APPROVAL

For reasons described below, this landscape plan is not recommended for approval at this time. A
response letter from the petitioner which addresses all review comments should be provided with their
next submittal.

REVIEW COMMENTS

Comments must be addressed before landscape plan approval can be recommended. If there are any
changes to the proposed project, additional comments may be provided. Please note that the
requirements of each section are in addition to the requirements of all other sections of the ordinance
(i.e., trees and other plant materials cannot be “double counted” to meet multiple requirements).

Parkway Landscaping

PREVIOUS COMMENTS ADDRESSED.

Perimeter Landscaping

This site does not abut residential property, so therefore perimeter landscaping requirements do not
apply.

Parking Lot Landscaping

PREVIOUS COMMENTS ADDRESSED.
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page 2

Lot Land

PREVIOUS COMMENTS ADDRESSED

Stormwater Basin Landscanine

No stormwater storage basin was found on the plans; therefore, these requirements are not applicable.

Tree Preservation

PREVIOUS COMMENTS PARTIALLY ADDRESSED. A Tree Preservation Plan has been added to the plan set
but required replacement trees have not been provided. Tree replacement may be required as detailed
in the Ordinance. Based upon the Existing Tree Removal Summary table provided on the Tree
Preservation Plan, a total of 49 replacement trees are required. Replacement trees are in addition to
those trees required by other sections of the ordinance.

The Demolition Plan and Tree Preservation Plan graphically depict all existing trees, including those to be
preserved, with an X in the center. Symbology should be revised to more clearly graphically represent
which trees are to be removed and which are to remain to avoid confusion (i.e., different symbols for
trees to be removed and preserved).

General Standards
PREVIOUS COMMENTS PARTIALLY ADDRESSED.

Honeylocust (19 of 51 shade trees = 37%) still does not meet diversity requirements (max 33% of the
total amount of required trees not of same genus).

SUMMARY

This review was based upon the following documents, pursuant to requirements of the City’s Landscape
Ordinance.

e Landscape Plan, sheet L100, prepared by Midwest Design Group Kansas City, dated 07-14-2023

e Demolition Plan, sheet C030, prepared by Midwest Design Group Kansas City, dated 07-14-2023
Tree reservation Plan, sheet C031, prepared by Midwest Design Group Kansas City, dated 07-14-
2023

e Response to comments, 7 pages, no author, not dated

Let us know if there are any questions or comments.

Sincerely,

Tim Pollowy, PLA, ASLA
Senior Landscape Architect



Engineering Enterprises, Inc.

August 2, 2023

Ms. Krysti Barksdale-Noble
Community Development Director
United City of Yorkville

651 Prairie Pointe Dr.

Yorkville, IL 60560

Re:  QuikTrip Gas Station & Convenience Store
Special Use Request — 2" Submittal
United City of Yorhkuville

Dear Krysti:

We have reviewed the following items for the above referenced project:

e Preliminary Engineering Plans (9 Sheets) dated July 14, 2023, and prepared by Midwest Design
Group

Our review of these plans and reports are to generally determine their compliance with local ordinances
and whether the improvements will conform to existing local systems and equipment. This review and
our comments do not relieve the designer from his duties to conform to all required codes, regulations,
and acceptable standards of engineering practice. Engineering Enterprises, Inc.’s review is not
intended as an in-depth quality assurance review, we cannot and do not assume responsibility for
design errors or omissions in the plans. As such, we offer the following comments:

General

1. The following permits may be required during final engineering and should be provided to the City
when obtained. The City and EEI should be copied on all correspondence with the agencies.

e YBSD approval is needed for the connection of the proposed sanitary lines to the
existing sanitary sewer.

e [EPA permit may be needed for the sanitary sewer service depending on the use and
calculated flow from the development.

o |EPA NPDES General Construction Permit is required. The Notice of Intent must be
filed with IEPA 30 days prior to start of construction.

¢ Stormwater permit application in accordance with the Yorkville Storm Water
Management Ordinance (Kendall Countywide Ordinance)

¢ |DOT permits are needed for the connections to lllinois Routes 71 and 47.

52 Wheeler Road - Sugar Grove, IL 60554 - Tel: 630.466.6700 - Fax: 630.466.6701 - www.eeiweb.com
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2.  The following will need to be submitted with Final Engineering Plans:
a. Truck turning exhibits for emergency vehicles
b. Photometric plan

c. An engineer's estimate needs to be provided and must include all public improvements
within the ROW including utility connections and all soil erosion and sediment control
items. This cost estimate will be used to determine the construction guarantee amount.
In addition, a cost estimate needs to be provided for all site improvements which will be
used to calculate the building permit fees.

d. See the attached Checklist for additional information needed at final engineering.

3. A preliminary stormwater report should be provided.

4.  Comments from IDOT on the acceptance of the location of the entrances should be provided
5.  The water main should be extended to the eastern property line for future extension.

6. Comments on the landscape plan shall be forthcoming.

If you have any questions or require additional information, please contact our office.

Respectfully Submitted,

ENGINEERING ENTERPRISES, INC.

Brad nderson, P.E.
Chief Operating Officer / President

BPS/tnp/pgw2

pc: Mr. Bart Olson, City Administrator (via email)
Ms. Erin Willrett, Assistant City Administrator (via email)
Mr. Eric Dhuse, Director of Public Works (via email)
Mr. Pete Ratos, Building Department (via email)
Ms. Dee Weinert, Admin Assistant (via email)
Ms. Jori Behland, City Clerk (via email)
Mr. Cyrus McMains, YBSD (via email)
Mr. Ali Bukhres, QuikTrip (via email)
TNP, PGW2, EEI (Via e-mail)

Wlilkyway\EEI_Storage\Docs\Public\Yorkville\2023\Y02325-DR QuikTrip Gas Station and Convenience Store\Development\Final Engineering
and Plat\Docs\Review and Response Letters\lcoyReview02 Preliminary.doc



March 23, 2023

UNITED C TY OF YORKYV LLE

GENERAL CHECKLIST FOR COMMERCIAL SITE PLANS/SINGLE LOT DEVELOPMENTS

(EXTERNAL USE ONLY)

Professional engineer signature and seal on drawings and calculations

Location map and address, J.U.L.I.E. note included on plans

Benchmarks based on NAVD 88 datum

Existing utilities and topography to be provided

v Existing elevations and contours shown at 1' intervals

Compliance with subdivision grading plan (if applicable) and/or provide proposed grading plan
v" Proposed elevations and contours at 1' intervals

v Indicate building top of foundation (2 ft. above H.W.L.)

v Storm water drainage - safe outlet available and adequate conveyance provided
Flood plain or flood way requirements to be addressed, if necessary

Stormwater management

v Per Kendall County/Yorkville stormwater management ordinance

v Apply for storm water permit, if necessary

Provide stormwater pollution prevention (SWPP) plan

v Apply for NOI permit, if necessary

v Note that receipt of NPDES permit required prior to construction

Provide typical pavement sections

Pavement markings and sighage

Entrance detail

Handicap ramp detail (use IDOT standard)

Show water service and include City standard details and notes

Show sanitary service with inspection manhole and include YBSD standard notes
Apply for appropriate IEPA permits — water and sanitary, if necessary

Provide easements, if necessary

Provide landscape plan

Provide photometric plan

Compliance with zoning code

Performance guarantee for public improvements

Overall cost estimate for all site improvements — for building permit fees

G:\Public\Yorkville\QOrdinances, Standard Notes, Forms and Checklists\Checklists\Single Lot Development Checklist - External.doc



Engineering Enterprises, Inc.

June 28, 2023

Ms. Krysti Barksdale-Noble
Community Development Director

United City of Yorkville
651 Prairie Pointe Dr.
Yorkville, IL 60560

Re: QuikTrip Gas Station & Convenience Store
Special Use Request — 1' Submittal
United City of Yorkville

Dear Krysti:

We have reviewed the following items for the above referenced project:

e Preliminary Engineering Plans (8 Sheets) dated May 22, 2023, and prepared by Midwest
Design Group.

¢ ALTA /NSPS Land Title Survey
¢ Application for Special Use

e Other supporting documentation

Our review of these plans and reports are to generally determine their compliance with local ordinances
and whether the improvements will conform to existing local systems and equipment. This review and
our comments do not relieve the designer from his duties to conform to all required codes, regulations,
and acceptable standards of engineering practice. Engineering Enterprises, Inc.'s review is not
intended as an in-depth quality assurance review, we cannot and do not assume responsibility for
design errors or omissions in the plans. As such, we offer the following comments:

General
1. The following permits may be required during final engineering and should be provided to the City
when obtained. The City and EEI should be copied on all correspondence with the agencies.

e YBSD approval is needed for the connection of the proposed sanitary lines to the
existing sanitary sewer.

e |EPA permit may be needed for the sanitary sewer service depending on the use and
calculated flow from the development.

e |EPA NPDES General Construction Permit is required. The Notice of intent must be
filed with IEPA 30 days prior to start of construction.

52 Wheeler Road - Sugar Grove, IL 60554 * Tel: 630.466.6700 - Fax: 630.466.6701 - www.eeiweb.com
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e Stormwater permit application in accordance with the Yorkville Storm Water
Management Ordinance (Kendall Countywide Ordinance)

e IDOT permits are needed for the connections to lllinois Routes 71 and 47.
2. The following will need to be submitted with Final Engineering Plans:
a. Truck turning exhibits for emergency vehicles
b. Photometric plan
c. An engineer's estimate needs to be provided and must include all public improvements
within the ROW including utility connections and all soil erosion and sediment control
items. This cost estimate will be used to determine the construction guarantee amount.

In addition, a cost estimate needs to be provided for all site improvements which will be
used to calculate the building permit fees.

d. See the attached Checklist for additional information needed at final engineering.
3. A preliminary stormwater report should be provided.

Preliminary Engineering Plans

C010 — Overall Site Plan

4. IDOT has planned reconstruction of the lllinois Route 71 and lllinois Route 47 intersection. These
proposed improvements should be incorporated into the plans. Contact IDOT for the latest plans.

5. Improvements to lllinois Route 71 and lllinois Route 47 as directed by IDOT for the proposed site
shall be shown. The engineer or developer should provide all correspondence with IDOT as it
relates to the proposed road connections.

6. Add a data table noting the planned parking spaces.

C100 - Site Plan

7. The water main should be extended to the eastern property line for future extension.

8. IDOT's intersection improvements include construction of a shared-use path. The proposed
sidewalk should be extended to the west to connect to the future shared-use path. Contact IDOT
for the latest plans.

9. Consider making the westernmost driveway off IL-71 right-in/right-out only to prevent traffic
backup into the intersection.

C102 — Vehicle Tracking (WB-67)

10. The WB-67 should be shown entering and exiting the site as well as maneuvering through the site
to the fuel pumps.



Ms. Krysti Barksdale-Noble
June 28, 2023

Page 3

L100 — Landscape Plan

11, The comments in the attached review letter from the City's landscaping consultant must be
addressed and a revised landscaping plan submitted.

If you have any questions or require additional information, please contact our office.

Respectfully Submitted,
ENGINEERING ENTERPRISES, INC.

Chief Operating Officer / .President
BPS/tnp/pgw2

pc: Mr. Bart Olson, City Administrator (via email)
Ms. Erin Willrett, Assistant City Administrator (via email)
Mr. Jason Engberg, Senior Planner (via email)
Mr. Eric Dhuse, Director of Public Works (via email)
Mr. Pete Ratos, Building Department (via email)
Ms. Dee Weinert, Admin Assistant (via email)
Ms. Jori Behland, City Clerk (via email)
Mr. Cyrus McMains, YBSD (via email)
Mr. Ali Bukhres, QuikTrip (via email)
TNP, PGW2, EEI (Via e-mail)

\Milkyway\EE|_Storage\Docs\Public\Y orkville\2023Y02325-DR QuikTrip Gas Station and Convenience Store\Development\Final Engineering
and Plat\Docs\Review and Response Letters\icoyReview01 Preliminary.doc



Hey and Associates, Inc.

Engineering, Ecology and Landscape Architecture

8755 W. HIGGINS ROAD, SUITE 853
MILWAUKEE, WISCONSIN CHICAGO, ILLINOIS 60631 Volo, ILLiNOIS
PHONE (773) 693-9200
Fax (773) 693-9200

June 27, 2023

Pamela Whitfield, PE, CFM
Senior Project Engineer |
Engineering Enterprises, Inc.
52 Wheeler Road

Sugar Grove, IL 60554

Project No.: 21-0275 U

Re: Landscape Plan Review
QuickTrip Gas Station & Convenience Store (YO2325)
107 E. Stagecoach Trail

Dear Pamela:

We have completed our first landscape plan review of the proposed QuikTrip Gas Station & Convenience
Store located at 107 E. Stagecoach Trail in Yorkville.

Landscape Plan — NOT RECOMMENDED FOR APPROVAL

For reasons described below, this landscape plan is not recommended for approval at this time. A
response letter from the petitioner which addresses all review comments should be provided with their
next submittal.

REVIEW COMMENTS

Comments must be addressed before landscape plan approval can be recommended. If there are any
changes to the proposed project, additional comments may be provided. Please note that the
requirements of each section are in addition to the requirements of all other sections of the ordinance
(i.e., trees and other plant materials cannot be “double counted” to meet multiple requirements).

Parkway Landscaping

Parkway trees are required along IL Route 47/Bridge Street and IL Route 71 Stagecoach Trail. A minimum
of one tree per 50 linear feet of frontage is required. Therefore, 18 parkway trees are required. If utilities
are a concern, it appears adequate space exists for them to be planted set back closer to the paved area
on site.

Perimeter Landscaping

This site does not abut residential property, so therefore perimeter landscaping requirements do not
apply.



Pamela Whitfield
QuikTrip

June 27, 2023
page 2

Parking Lot Landscaping

Interior: One tree is required for every 20 parking spaces. Therefore, three trees are required. Also, the
plans should specify that all interior parking lot shade trees be limbed to a height of not less than eight
feet to ensure proper visibility within the parking lot.

Perimeter: When a parking lot is adjacent to a public right-of-way, a landscape buffer yard shall be
provided the width of the required parking setback or 30’, whichever is less; the buffer yard shall consist
of one shade tree, one evergreen tree, and 33 shrubs per 100 linear feet. Therefore, 455’ of landscape
buffer yard is required along IL Route 47/Bridge Street and 200’ of buffer yard is required along IL Route
71/Stagecoach Trail.

Lot Landscaping

The petitioner’s calculations on the plan indicate 24 shade trees and 180 shrubs are required based upon
lot size. These plantings are in addition to all other requirements (i.e., plantings cannot be double
counted).

Stormwater Storage Basin Landscaping

No stormwater storage basin was found on the plans; therefore, these requirements are not applicable.

Tree Preservation

Tree Preservation standards apply to all development parcels greater than five acres in area; therefore,
these requirements are applicable to this site. A tree survey showing the location of all trees four inches
and greater including botanical name, common name, size, and condition/health will be required. Tree
replacement may be required as detailed in the Ordinance.

The Demolition Plan indicates all existing trees on site, including those that appear to lie outside of the
limits of construction, are to be removed. It is recommended that the petitioner considers preserving
existing healthy, quality trees where possible. Preserved trees may be counted toward landscape
requirements (e.g., Lot Landscaping) as per section 8-12-3 G. of the Ordinance.

General Standards

The Landscape Schedule should be revised to reflect the minimum size of plan materials specified in the
ordinance.

Shade trees: 2.5” caliper
Evergreen trees: 8’ tall
Ornamental trees: 6’ tall
Shrubs: 24" tall

Ll B

Willow Oak is more of a southern species and not planted in NE IL. Another species should be specified.

Oak and Honeylocust do not meet diversity requirements (max 33% of the total amount of required trees
not of same genus).



Pamela Whitfield
QuikTrip

June 27, 2023
page 3

The landscape plan should identify the location, quantity, size, and type (both botanical and common
names) of all existing landscaping to be preserved and removed, and all proposed landscaping.

SUMMARY

This review was based upon the following documents, pursuant to requirements of the City’s Landscape
Ordinance.

e Landscape Plan, sheet L100, prepared by Midwest Design Group Kansas City, dated 5/22/23
e Demolition Plan, sheet C030, prepared by Midwest Design Group Kansas City, dated 5/22/2023

Let us know if there are any questions or comments.
Sincerely,

Tim Pollowy, PLA, ASLA

Senior Landscape Architect



March 23, 2023

UNITED CITY OF YORKYV LLE

GENERAL CHECKLIST FOR COMMERCIAL SITE PLANS/SINGLE LOT DEVELOPMENTS

(EXTERNAL USE ONLY)

Professional engineer signature and seal on drawings and calculations

Location map and address, J.U.L.I.E. note included on plans

Benchmarks based on NAVD 88 datum

Existing utilities and topography to be provided

v Existing elevations and contours shown at 1' intervals

Compliance with subdivision grading plan (if applicable) and/or provide proposed grading plan
v Proposed elevations and contours at 1' intervals

v Indicate building top of foundation (2 ft. above H.W.L.)

v’ Storm water drainage - safe outlet available and adequate conveyance provided
Flood plain or flood way requirements to be addressed, if necessary

Stormwater management

v Per Kendall County/Yorkville stormwater management ordinance

v Apply for storm water permit, if necessary

Provide stormwater pollution prevention (SWPP) plan

v Apply for NOI permit, if necessary

v Note that receipt of NPDES permit required prior to construction

Provide typical pavement sections

Pavement markings and signage

Entrance detail

Handicap ramp detail (use IDOT standard)

Show water service and include City standard details and notes

Show sanitary service with inspection manhole and include YBSD standard notes
Apply for appropriate IEPA permits — water and sanitary, if necessary

Provide easements, if necessary

Provide landscape plan

Provide photometric plan

Compliance with zoning code

Performance guarantee for public improvements

Overall cost estimate for all site improvements — for building permit fees

G:\Public\Yorkville\Ordinances, Standard Notes, Forms and Checklists\Checklists\Single Lot Development Checklist - External.doc



Memorandum

To: Planning and Zoning Commission
From: Krysti J. Barksdale-Noble, Community Development Director
CC: Bart Olson, City Administrator

Date: October 3, 2023
Subject: PZC 2023-12 Kendall Marketplace Commercial — Lots 4 & 5

Final Plat of Resubdivision

PROPOSED REQUEST:

The petitioner, Alexander L. Berman, on behalf of Kendall Holdings I, LLC, is seeking final plat of
resubdivision approval for Lots 4 & 5 of the Kendall Marketplace Commercial Development. The lots,
consisting of approximately 3 acres, are proposed to be resubdivided into three (3) new ~1-acre parcels
and abrogate an existing ten (10) foot public utility easement. Platted as new commercial out lots located
at the northwest corner of US Route 34 and Isabel Drive, the lots will have access from Edward Lane and
utilized for future commercial land users with appropriately sized lots within the larger retail

development.

Pl

Ns:
FINAL PLAT OF RESUBDIVISION 02:29-101-007

KENDALL MARKETPLACE
St LOTS 4 AND 5 RESUBDIVISION

PART OF THE NORTHWEST 1/4 OF SECTION 29, TOWNSHIP 37 NORTH,
RANGE 7 EAST OF THE THIRD ICIPAL MERIDIAN
IN THE UNITED CITY OF YORKVILLE, KENDALL COUNTY, ILLINOIS

KENDALL MARKETPLACE GRAPHIC SCALE
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PROPERTY SUMMARY:

The subject property is currently zoned as B-3 General Business District as part of the Kendall
Marketplace Planned Unit Development (PUD). The following are the current immediate surrounding
zoning and land uses:

Zoning Land Use
North B-3 General Business District Kendall Marketplace
B-3 General Business District Kendall Marketplace
East R-4 General Multi-Family Residence District Cedarhurst Senior Living Facility
R-3 One-Family (Kendall County) Oak Knolls Subdivision

B-1 Local Business District
South 0O Office District Kendall County Government Center
West B-3 General Business District Kendall Marketplace
A-1 Agricultural (Kendall County) Undeveloped/Farmland

EXISTING DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT:

The Development Agreement (Ord. 2006-125) for Kendall Marketplace states per Article II of the
Development Agreement (Ord. 2006-125) for Kendall Marketplace, “[t]he development of the property
shall be generally pursuant to the Conceptual Plans attached hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit B”
(shown on the next page with subject parcels).

The original conceptual plan illustrates two (2) lots to contain one retail building each. While the
proposed three (3) lot layout is slightly different, the proposed final plat of resubdivision generally keeps
with the intent of the original concept plan of one retail building per lot and does not deviate from the
plan’s original intent.

PROJECT
KENDALL MARKETPLACE
YORKVILLE, LLINOIS

ILLINOFS ROUTE 34 & CANNONBALL TRAL

MAT . FAMLY PARCE :

raxca aaa
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[ —
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STAFF COMMENTS:

The proposed Final Plat of Resubdivision has been reviewed by the City’s engineering consultant,
Engineering Enterprises Inc., for compliance with the Subdivision Control Ordinance’s Standards for
Specification. Comments, dated September 7, 2023, found that the submitted plans were in conformance
with the City’s regulations.

Based upon the review of the proposed Final Plat of Subdivision of Kendall Marketplace Lots 4 and 5,
staff believes the submitted plans are consistent with the approved conceptual site plan and the current
subdivision control regulations.

PROPOSED MOTION:

In consideration of the proposed Final Plat of Resubdivision of Kendall Marketplace Lots 4 and 5, the
Planning and Zoning Commission recommends approval of the plat to the City Council as presented by
the Petitioner in plans prepared by HR Green dated last revised 08/24/23, and further subject to {insert
any additional conditions of the Planning and Zoning Commission)...

ATTACHMENTS:

1. Final Plat of Subdivision Application
2. Final Plat of Resubdivision date revised August 24, 2023 and response letter dated 8-31-23
3. EEI Review Comments dated September 7, 2023



300 Came Form Rosd APPLICATION FOR

Yorkville, Illinois, 60560

Fox 6305537575 FINAL PLAT/REPLAT

Website: www.yorkville.il.us

INTENT AND PURPOSE

The purpose of this application is to allow land to be divided and distributed in a way that conforms to the City of Yorkville's
standards. The process for applying for a final plat or replat allows for the review of a proposed layout of divided lots and establishes
standard design specification to ensure adequate roadways for safe and efficient traffic circulation is provided; safeguard against
flood damage; promotes access and availability of utilities; and requires the provision of other necessary public improvements.

This packet explains the process to successfully submit and complete an Application for Final Plat/Replat. It includes a detailed
description of the process, outlines required submittal materials, and contains the application.

For a complete explanation of what is legally required throughout the process, please refer to “Title 11 Subdivision Control” of the
Yorkville, lllinois City Code.

APPLICATION PROCEDURE

1 The following must be submitted:
O One (1) original signed and notarized application.
APPLICATION O Legal description of the property in Microsoft Word.
SUBMITTAL

O Three (3) copies each of the exhibits and proposed drawings. All exhibits and plans must be an
appropriate size for all details and descriptions to be legible.

OO0 Appropriate application and filing fee. Checks may be written to the United City of Yorkville.

O Signed Applicant Deposit Account/Acknowledgment of Financial Responsibility form.

O  One (1) electronic copy (PDF) of all materials submitted including application and exhibits.
Within one (1) week of submittal, the Community Development Department will determine if the

application is complete or if additional information is needed. An incomplete submittal could delay the
scheduling of the project.

The petitioner is responsible for payment of recording fees and outside consultant costs (i.e. legal review,
engineering review, etc.). The petitioner will be required to establish a deposit account with the City to

cover these fees.

Once submitted and complete, Community Development staff will provide a tentative schedule of
meetings as well as all the needed documents for the process.

STEP MEETS ON THE 2ND & 4TH THURSDAY OF THE MONTH

z This step is dependent on the complexity of the request and may be skipped at the discretion of staff.
The petitioner must present the proposed request to the Plan Council. The members of the Council

PLAN include the Community Development Director, City Engineer, the Building Department Official, the
COUNCIL Public Works Director, the Director of Parks and Recreation, a Fire Department Representative, and a

Police Department Representative. This meeting is held to provide the petitioner with guidance from
all City staff departments to ensure the petitioner is aware of all requirements and regulations for their
development. Upon recommendation by the Plan Council, the petitioner will move forward to the
Economic Development Committee.



300 Came Form Rosd APPLICATION FOR

Yorkville, Illinois, 60560

Fox 6305537575 FINAL PLAT/REPLAT

Website: www.yorkville.il.us

STEP MEETS ON THE 1ST TUESDAY OF THE MONTH
3 The petitioner must present the proposed plat to the Economic Development Committee. The committee
consists of four alderman who will provide feedback to the petitioner regarding their request. This
ECONOMIC feedback allows the petitioner to gather comments and concerns prior to full City Council considerations.

DEVELOPMENT It also allows the City Council members to review the request prior to its arrival at City Council.
COMMITTEE

STEP MEETS ON THE 2ND WEDNESDAY OF THE MONTH
4 The petitioner will attend and present their plat to the Planning and Zoning Commission. The Planning
and Zoning Commission will discuss the request and make a recommendation to City Council.
PLANNING
& ZONING
CONMMISSION
STEP MEETS ON THE 2ND & 4TH TUESDAY OF THE MONTH
5 The petitioner will attend the City Council meeting where the recommendation of the plat will be
considered. City Council will make the final approval of the plat. If approved, City staff will have a drafted
ordinance to be signed by the Council and must be recorded with the County Clerk before any further
u steps may be taken by the petitioner.
COUNCIL
SAMPLE MEETING SCHEDULE
MONTH 1 MONTH 2 MONTH 3 MONTH 4
Su M Tu w Th F Sa Su M Tu w Th F Sa Su M Tu w Th F Sa Su M Tu w Th F Sa
15 16 17 18 19 20 21 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 15 16 17 18 19 20 21
2 3 4 5 26 27 | 20 2T 22 23 24 25 26 17 I Ig 20 T 2 3 22 23 o4 25 26 27 28

Plan Council Meeting Economic Development Planning & Zoning Commission City Council
Committee
Meeting Date Updated Materials Submitted for Meeting

This is a sample of what a schedule may look like after submission. The Step 1 Submission must be completed before the Plan
Council Meeting can be scheduled. This timeline represents an ideal schedule. Throughout the review process, there may be
requests or changes to the submission requested by the committees which may delay the meeting schedule. As illustrated, there
is a small amount of time between meeting dates and the deadline for updated materials to be submitted for review. Depending
on the complexity and nature of the request, this timeline may be extended to give the petitioner and staff enough time to review
requested updates to the submission.



300 Came Form Rosd APPLICATION FOR

Yorkville, Illinois, 60560

Fox 6305537575 FINAL PLAT/REPLAT

Website: www.yorkville.il.us

DORMANT APPLICATIONS

The Community Development Director shall determine if an application meets or fails to meet the submission requirements. If the
Director determines that the application is incomplete it will become dormant under these circumstances:

+ The applicant has been notified of such deficiencies and has not responded or provided a time line for completing the
application within ninety (90) days from the time of notification.

« The applicant has not responded in writing to a request for information or documentation from the initial planning and
zoning commission review within six (6) months from the date of that request.

+ The applicant has not responded to a request for legal or engineering deposit replenishment for city incurred costs and fees
within ninety (90) days from the date of the request.

If the Community Development Director has sent the required notice and the applicant has not withdrawn their application
or brought it into compliance, then the director shall terminate the application. After termination, the application shall not be
reconsidered except after the filing of a completely new application.

Withdrawal or termination of an application shall not affect the applicant’s responsibility for payment of any costs and fees, or any
other outstanding debt owed to the city. The balance of any funds deposited with the city that is not needed to pay for costs and
fees shall be returned to the applicant. (Ord. 2011-34, 7-26-2011)



United City of Yorkville

800 Game Farm Road
Yorkville, lllinois, 60560
Telephone: 630-553-4350
Fax: 630-553-7575
Website: www.yorkville.il.us

APPLICATION FOR
FINAL PLAT/REPLAT

REQUIRED MATERIALS FOR FINAL PLAT OR SUBDIVISION PLAT

The following information must be shown on all final plats and final plats of resubdivision:

Legal Description
Monuments

Exterior Boundary Lines
Widths

Lot Lines

Setback Lines

VPO ®O9
90090

Consecutive Numbering & Lettering

Lot Angles
Circular Curves
Street Names
Abutment
Dedicated Lands

FINAL PLAT OF RESUBDIVISION EXAMPLE

Watercourses and Drainage
Access to Lake or Streams (not shown)

Survey

0O 8

Certificates of Approval (not shown)

FINAL PLAT OF RESUBDIVISION

KENDALL MARKETPLACE
LOT 52 PHASE 1 RESUBDIVISION

A RESUBDIVISION OF LOT 52 IN KENDALL MARKETPLACE, BEING A PART
OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 19 AND PART OF THE SOUTHWEST
1/4 OF SECTION 20, BOTH IN TOWNSHIP 37 NORTH, RANGE 7 EAST OF
THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF
RECORDED MAY 7, 2007 AS DOCUMENT 200700014779 IN THE UNITED
TY OF YORKVILLE, KENDALL COUNTY, ILLINOIS
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United City of Yorkville
800 Game Farm Road
Yorkville, lllinois, 60560
Telephone: 630-553-4350
Fax: 630-553-7575

Website: www.yorkville.il.us

APPLICATION FOR
FINAL PLAT/REPLAT

INVOICE & WORKSHEET PETITION APPLICATION

CONCEPT PLAN REVIEW L] Engineering Plan Review deposit ~ $500.00
AMENDMENT ] Annexation $500.00

[ Plan $500.00

L] Plat $500.00

LI Pu.D. $500.00
ANNEXATION (] $250.00 + $10 per acre for each acre over 5 acres

-5= x$10= +%250=%
# of Acres Acres over 5 Amount for Extra Acres Total Amount

REZONING (1 $200.00 + $10 per acre for each acre over 5 acres

If annexing and rezoning, charge only 1 per acre fee; if rezoning to a PUD, charge PUD Development Fee - not Rezoning Fee

-5= x$10= +5200=$

#of Acres Acres over 5 Amount for Extra Acres Total Amount

SPECIAL USE (] $250.00 + $10 per acre for each acre over 5 acres
-5= x$10= +5$250= %

#of Acres Acres over 5 Amount for Extra Acres Total Amount
ZONING VARIANCE (] $85.00 + $500.00 outside consultants deposit
PRELIMINARY PLAN FEE (] $500.00
PUD FEE (1 $500.00
FINAL PLAT FEE (2] $500.00

ENGINEERING PLAN
REVIEW DEPOSIT

(] Less than 1 acre

(] Over 1 acre, less than 10 acres
(] Over 10 acres, less than 40 acres
(] Over 40 acres, less than 100 acres
(] Over 100 acres

$5,000.00

$10,000.00
$15,000.00
$20,000.00
$25,000.00

OUTSIDE CONSULTANTS DEPOSIT Legal, land planner, zoning coordinator, environmental services
For Annexation, Subdivision, Rezoning, and Special Use:

(] Less than 2 acres
(=] Over 2 acres, less than 10 acres
] Over 10 acres

$1,000.00
$2,500.00
$5,000.00

TOTAL AMOUNT DUE:




United City of Yorkville

800 Game Farm Road
Yorkville, lllinois, 60560
Telephone: 630-553-4350
Fax: 630-553-7575
Website: www.yorkville.il.us

APPLICATION FOR
FINAL PLAT/REPLAT

DATE: PZC NUMBER:

DEVELOPMENT NAME:

PETITIONER INFORMATION

NAME: Kendall Holdings |, LLC (Alexander L. Berman)

COMPANY: Kendall Holdings I, LLC

MAILING ADDRESS: 707 Skokie Blvd. #600

CITY, STATE, ZIP: Northbrook, IL 60062

TELEPHONE: O HOME © BUSINESS 312-915-0690

EMAIL: aberman@gwdglobal.com

FAX:

PROPERTY INFORMATION

NAME OF HOLDER OF LEGALTITLE: Kendall Holdings I, LLC

[F LEGALTITLE IS HELD BY A LAND TRUST, LIST THE NAMES OF ALL HOLDERS OF ANY BENEFICIAL INTEREST THEREIN:

N/A

PROPERTY STREET ADDRESS: 978 Edward Lane and 1575 Isabel Drive

DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY’S PHYSICAL LOCATION:

Lot 4 and Lot 5 in the Kendall Marketplace Subdivision. Lot 4 (PIN: 02-29-101-003) located at 978 Edward Lane, and Lot 5 (PIN:
02-29-101-007) located at 1575 Isabel Drive containing approximately 1.43 and 1.67 acre respectively.

CURRENT ZONING CLASSIFICATION: PUD - B-3

TOTAL LOT ACREAGE: 3.10 +/-

TOTAL NUMBER OF LOTSTO BE CREATED: 3

PROPOSED LOT AREAS AND DIMENSIONS

LOT NUMBER LOT DIMENSIONS (W x L, IN FEET) LOT AREA (IN SQUARE FEET)
Lot 1 145.50' x 280.00' 40,739
Lot 2 144.00' x 280.00' 40,320
Lot 3 193.60' x 280.00' 53,794




500 Come Form ond. APPLICATION FOR

Yorkville, lllinois, 60560

Foc 6305557575 " FINAL PLAT/REPLAT

Website: www.yorkville.il.us

ATTORNEY INFORMATION

NAME: Jamie L. Romick COMPANY: Greenberg Traurig, LLP

MAILING ADDRESS: 77 West Wacker Drive, Suite 3100

CITY, STATE, ZIP: Chicago, IL 60601 TELEPHONE; 312-476-5020

EMAIL: jamie.romick@gtlaw.com FAX: 312-896-5150

ENGINEER INFORMATION

NAME: David Schultz COMPANY: HR Green, Inc.

MAILING ADDRESS: 2363 Sequoia Drive, #101

CITY, STATE, ZIp: Aurora, IL 60506 TELEPHONE: 630-708-5002

EMAIL: dschultz@hrgreen.com FAX: 713-965-0044

LAND PLANNER/SURVEYOR INFORMATION

NAME: Bernie Bauer COMPANY: HR Green, Inc.

MAILING ADDRESS: 2363 Sequoia Drive, #101

CITY, STATE, ZIP: Aurora, IL 60506 TELEPHONE: 630-708-5033
EMAIL: bbauer@hrgreen.com EAX: 713-965-0044
ATTACHMENTS

Petitioner must attach a legal description of the property to this application and title it as “Exhibit A"

AGREEMENT

| VERIFY THAT ALL THE INFORMATION IN THIS APPLICATION IS TRUE TO THE BEST OF MY KNOWLEDGE. | UNDERSTAND AND ACCEPT ALL REQUIREMENTS AND FEES AS
OUTLINED ASWELL AS ANY INCURRED ADMINISTRATIVE AND PLANNING CONSULTANT FEES WHICH MUST BE CURRENT BEFORE THIS PROJECT CAN PROCEED TO THE NEXT
SCHEDULED COMMITTEE MEETING.

I UNDERSTAND ALL OF THE INFORMATION PRESENTED IN THIS DOCUMENT AND UNDERSTAND THAT IF AN APPLICATION BECOMES DORMANT IT IS THROUGH MY OWN
FAULT AND | MUST THEREFORE FOLLOW THE REQUIREMENTS OUTLINED ABOVE.

PETITIONER SIGNATURE
OWNER HEREBY AUTHORIZESTHE PETITIONERTO PURSUETHE APPROPRIATE ENTITLEMENTS ONTHE PROPERTY.

OWNER SIGNATURE




o e Finn oot APPLICANT DEPOSIT ACCOUNT/
i B g ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF FINANCIAL

Telephone: 630-553-4350

Fax: 630-553-7575 RESPONSIBILITY

Website: www.yorkville.il.us

PROJECT FUND ACCOUNT PROPERTY ADDRESS:
NAME: NUMBER: 978 Edward Lane and 1575 Isabel Drive

PETITIONER DEPOSIT ACCOUNT FUND:

It is the policy of the United City of Yorkville to require any petitioner seeking approval on a project or entitiement request to establish a Petitioner Deposit Account Fund
to cover all actual expenses occurred as a result of processing such applications and requests. Typical requests requiring the establishment of a Petitioner Deposit Account
Fund include, but are not limited to, plan review of development approvals/engineering permits. Deposit account funds may also be used to cover costs for services related
to legal fees, engineering and other plan reviews, processing of other governmental applications, recording fees and other outside coordination and consulting fees. Each
fund account is established with an initial deposit based upon the estimated cost for services provided in the INVOICE & WORKSHEET PETITION APPLICATION. This initial
deposit is drawn against to pay for these services related to the project or request. Periodically throughout the project review/approval process, the Financially Responsible
Party will receive an invoice reflecting the charges made against the account. At any time the balance of the fund account fall below ten percent (10%) of the original deposit
amount, the Financially Responsible Party will receive an invoice requesting additional funds equal to one-hundred percent (100%) of the initial deposit if subsequent
reviews/fees related to the project are required. In the event that a deposit account is notimmediately replenished, review by the administrative staff, consultants, boards and
commissions may be suspended until the account is fully replenished. If additional funds remain in the deposit account at the completion of the project, the city will refund
the balance to the Finandially Responsible Party. A written request must be submitted by the Financially Responsible Party to the city by the 15th of the month in order for
the refund check to be processed and distributed by the 15th of the following month. All refund checks will be made payable to the Financially Responsible Party and mailed
to the address provided when the account was established.

ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF FINANCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

NAME: Alexander L. Berman (OMPANY:  Kendall Holdings |, LLC

MAILING ADDRESS: 707 Skokie Blvd., #600

CITY, STATE, ZIP: Northbrook, IL 60062 TELEPHONE: 312-915-0690

EMAIL: aberman@gwdglobal.com FAX:

FINANCIALLY RESPONSIBLE PARTY:

| acknowledge and understand that as the Finandially Responsible Party, expenses may exceed the estimated initial deposit and, when requested by the United City of
Yorkville, | will provide additional funds to maintain the required account balance. Further, the sale or other disposition of the property does not relieve the individual or
Company/Corporation of their obligation to maintain a positive balance in the fund account, unless the United City of Yorkville approves a Change of Responsible Party and
transfer of funds. Should the account go into deficit, all City work may stop until the requested replenishment deposit is received.

Alexander L. Berman PRESI.JEJ-f-

PRINT NAME TITLE
SIGNATURE* DATE %

*The name of the individual and the person who signs this declaration must be the same. If a corporation Js listed, a corporate officer must sign the declaration (President, Vice-
President, Chairman, Secretary or Treasurer)

INITIAL ENGINEERING/LEGAL DEPOSIT TOTALS

ENGINEERING DEPOSITS: LEGAL DEPQSITS:

Uptoone (1) acre $5,000 Less than two (2) acres $1,000
Over one (1) acre, but less than ten (10) acres §10,000 QOvertwo (2) acres, but fess than ten (10) acres $2,500
Over ten (10) acres, but less than forty (40) acres $15,000 Overten (10) acres $5,000
Over forty (40) acres, but less than one hundred (100) $20,000

In excess of one hundred (100.00) acres 425,000




EXHIBIT A:

LOT 4 AND LOT 5 IN KENDALL MARKETPLACE SUBDIVISION, BEING A SUBDIVISION OF PART OF SECTIONS
19, 20 AND 29, TOWNSHIP 37 NORTH, RANGE 7 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, RECORDED
MAY 7, 2007 AS DOCUMENT NUMBER 200700014779 IN THE UNITED CITY OF YORKVILLE, KENDALL
COUNTY, ILLINOIS.

EXCEPTING THEREFROM THAT PART OF LOT 5 CONVEYED TO THE PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF ILLINOIS,
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION BY WARRANTY DEED RECORDED JANUARY 30, 2017 AS DOCUMENT
NUMBER 201700001779, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

PART OF LOTS 1 AND 5 IN KENDALL MARKETPLACE, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT RECORDED AS DOCUMENT
NUMBER 200700014779 IN THE KENDALL COUNTY RECORDER'S OFFICE, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS, USING
BEARINGS AND DISTANCES REFERENCED TO THE ILLINOIS STATE PLANE COORDINATE SYSTEM, EAST
ZONE (NAD 83, 2011 ADJ ) COMMENCING AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID LOT 5, THENCE SOUTH
85 DEGREES 32 MINUTES 16 SECONDS EAST 148.84 FEET ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID LOT 5 TO THE
POINT OF BEGINNING, THENCE NORTH 84 DEGREES 56 MINUTES 58 SECONDS EAST 25.35 FEET, THENCE
SOUTH 85 DEGREES 30 MINUTES 38 SECONDS EAST 175.00 FEET, THENCE SOUTH 76 DEGREES 12
MINUTES 34 SECONDS EAST 25.33 FEET TO THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID LOT 1, THENCE NORTH 85 DEGREES
32 MINUTES 16 SECONDS WEST 225.00 FEET ALONG THE SOUTH LINES OF LOTS 1 AND 5 TO THE POINT
OF BEGINNING, SITUATED IN THE UNITED CITY OF YORKVILLE, KENDALL COUNTY, STATE OF ILLINOIS.
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ACCESS NOTJE:

THERE SHALL NO DIRECT ACCESS FROM LOTS 1,
2, AND 3 CREATED HEREON TO U.S. ROUTE 34.

1. ANNOTATION ABBREVIATIONS —

B.S.L. = BUILDING SETBACK LINE
P.O.B. = POINT OF COMMENCEMENT
P.O.B = POINT OF BEGINNING
ROW. = RIGHT-OF—-WAY

PUE. = PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT

P.U.&D.E. = PUBLIC UTILITY & DRAINAGE EASEMENT
(M&R)=  MEASURED AND RECORD DIMENSION

(XXX.XX)=  RECORD DIMENSION

2. SURVEY IS BASED IN PART ON COMMITMENT FOR TITLE INSURANCE
NCS—1157110—CHI2, ISSUED BY FIRST AMERICAN TITLE INSURANCE COMPANY,

BEARING A COMMITMENT DATE OF 11,/09,/2022.

3. EASEMENTS SHOWN HEREON WERE GRANTED UPON KENDALL MARKETPLACE

SUBDIVISION, RECORDED 05,/07,/2007 AS DOCUMENT 200700014779, UNLESS
OTHERWISE NOTED. SEE GRANTING DOCUMENTS FOR EASEMENT PROVISIONS.

4. THIS PROPERTY IS WITHIN THE CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE UNITED CITY OF
YORKVILLE.

5. A RECIPROCAL EASEMENT FOR THE BENEFIT OF THE OWNERS OF LOTS 1-15,
17-20 & 54—56 IN KENDAL MARKETPLACE SUBDIVISION, AND THEIR ASSIGNS,
FOR INGRESS AND EGRESS OVER THE PAVED AREAS OF SAID LOTS 1-15,
17-20, & 54—-56 EXISTS PER OPERATION AND EASEMENT AGREEMENT,
RECORDED MAY 24, 2007 AS DOCUMENT NO. 200700016695.

8. 5/8” STEEL RODS SET @ ALL EXTERIOR CORNERS UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED.
9. DIMENSIONS ALONG CURVES ARE ARC DISTANCES UNLESS OTHERWSE NOTED.

10. PROPERTY ZONING IS B—3 (PUD) IN THE UNITED CITY OF YORKVILLE.

8/24/2023 2:49:19 PM
J:\2023\2302275\Survey\Dwg\2302275—FP.dwg

IN THE UNITED CITY OF YORKVILLE, KENDALL COUNTY, ILLINOIS

KENDALL MARKETPLACE
DOC. 200700014779
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FOR REVIEW

BERNARD J. BAUER, P.L.S. (bbauer@hrgreen.com)
ILLINOIS PROFESSIONAL LAND SURVEYOR No. 3799

LICENSE EXPIRES: 11/30/2024

BY

DATE
08/24/23| BJB |PER EEI COMMENTS DATED 08/03/23

NO.
1

lllinois Professional Design Firm # 184-001322

t. 630.553.7560 f. 630.553.7646

2363 Sequoia Drive, Suite 101
www.hrgreen.com

Aurora, lllinois 60506
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(1
N

HRGreen

4 AND S5 RESUBDIVISION

FINAL PLAT OF RESUBDIVISION
KENDALL MARKETPLACE
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IF NOT ONE INCH,
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DRAWN BY: BJB

APPROVED: MD

JOB DATE: 07/20/2023

JOB NO: 2302275
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OWNER'S CERTIFICATE

STATE OF )
) S.S.

COUNTY OF

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT ,
IS THE FEE SIMPLE OWNER OF THE PROPERTY DESCRIBED FOREGOING SURVEYOR'S CERTIFICATE AND
HAVE CAUSED THE SAME TO BE SURVEYED, SUBDIVIDED, AND PLATTED AS SHOWN HEREON FOR THE
USES AND PURPOSES HEREIN SET FORTH AS ALLOWED AND PROVIDED FOR BY STATUTE, AND DO
HEREBY ACKNOWLEDGE AND ADOPT THE SAME UNDER THE STYLE AND TITLE THEREON INDICATED.

THE UNDERSIGNED HEREBY DEDICATES FOR PUBLIC USE THE LANDS INDICATED ON THIS PLAT AS
THOROUGHFARES, STREETS, ALLEYS, AND PUBLIC SERVICES; AND HEREBY ALSO RESERVES FOR ANY
ELECTRIC, GAS, TELEPHONE, CABLE TV OR OTHER TELECOMMUNICATIONS COMPANY UNDER FRANCHISE
AGREEMENT WITH THE UNITED CITY OF YORKVILLE, THEIR SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS, THE EASEMENT
PROVISIONS WHICH ARE STATED HEREON.

THE UNDERSIGNED FURTHER CERTIFY THAT ALL OF THE LAND INCLUDED IN THIS PLAT LIES WITHIN
THE BOUNDARIES OF YORKVILLE COMMUNITY UNIT SCHOOL DISTRICT 115.

DATED AT . THIS —— DAY OF » 20 CITY PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION CERTIFICATE CITY ADMINISTRATOR’S CERTIFICATE KENDALL COUNTY RECORDER j
STATE OF ILLINOIS ) STATE OF ILLINOIS )) cs |<D_E
CORPORATION NAME ) S.S. S.
COUNTY OF KENDALL) COUNTY OF KENDALL) .
APPROVED AND ACCEPTED BY THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION OF THE APPROVED AND ACCEPTED BY THE CITY ADMINISTRATOR OF THE UNITED CITY <
COMPLETE ADDRESS UNITED CITY OF YORKVILLE, ILLINOIS, THIS _______DAY OF. , 20___. OF YORKVILLE, ILLINOIS, THIS ——— DAY OF. » 20 Al RIIFICAT,
STATE OF ILLINOIS )
BY: ) ss
PRESIDENT SECRETARY COUNTY OF KENDALL)
CHAIRMAN CITY ADMINISTRATOR

PRINTED NAME PRINTED NAME

©
- ¥
o ©
= N
£ 9
a ©
. ©
TARY CERTIFICATI CITY COUNCIL. CERTIFICATE COLLECTION AND DIVERSION OF SUCH SURFACE WATERS INTO PUBLIC AREAS, OR DRAINS WHICH THE L R=RE c
STATE OF ILLINOIS ) - SUBDIVIDER HAS A RIGHT TO USE, AND THAT SUCH SURFACE WATERS WILL BE PLANNED FOR IN 5358
STATE OF ) ) s.s. STATE OF ILLINOIS ) ACCORDANCE WITH GENERALLY ACCEPTED ENGINEERING PRACTICES SO AS TO REDUCE THE 828 ¢
) SS. COUNTY OF KENDALL) ) S.S. LIKELIHOOD OF DAMAGE TO THE ADJOINING PROPERTY BECAUSE OF THE CONSTRUCTION OF THIS SESS
COUNTY OF ) COUNTY OF KENDALL) SUBDIVISION. g= 1 o
0N © °C
gﬁiRg;Egogz@Lfgciﬁg; YB;H(";RA;;‘V;?VRC;%LZ CITY COUNCIL OF THE UNT:;D APPROVED AND ACCEPTED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE UNITED DATED THIS DAY OF 20 23 2
l , NOTARY PUBLIC IN AND FOR A MEETING HELD THIS " LAY OF ‘ 20 CITY OF YORKVILLE, ILLINOIS, THIS _______ DAY OF. , 20 — S S
THE STATE AND COUNTY AFORESAID, HEREBY CERTIFY THAT -
AND , PERSONALLY KNOW TO ME TO THE PRESIDENT AND
SECRETARY OF , AS SHOWN ABOVE, APPEARED BEFORE OWNER (OR DULY AUTHORIZED ATTORNEY) REGISTERED PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER
ME THIS DAY AND ACKNOWLEDGED THAT AS SUCH OFFICERS, THEY SIGNED AND DELIVERED THE SAID VAYOR

INSTRUMENT AND CAUSED THE CORPORATE SEAL TO BE AFFIXED THERETO AS THEIR FREE AND
VOLUNTARY ACT AND AS THE FREE AND VOLUNTARY ACT OF SAID CORPORATION, FOR THE USES
AND PURPOSES THEREIN SET FORTH.

GIVEN UNDER MY HAND AND NOTARIAL SEAL THIS ___ DAY OF , 20__.

NOTARY PUBLIC

LOTS

FINAL PLAT OF RESUBDIVISION

KENDALL MARKETPLACE

4 AND o RESUBDIVISION

PART OF THE NORTHWEST 1/4 OF SECTION 29, TOWNSHIP 37 NORTH,

RANGE 7 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN
IN THE UNITED CITY OF YORKVILLE, KENDALL COUNTY, ILLINOIS

Y RK' RIIFI

7,

CITY CLERK

CITY ENGINEER'S CERTIFICATE

STATE OF ILLINOIS )
) S.S.
COUNTY OF KENDALL)

LD.O.T. RIIFICAT

THIS PLAT HAS BEEN APPROVED BY THE ILLINOIS DEPARTMENT OF
TRANSPORTATION WITH RESPECT TO ROADWAY ACCESS PURSUANT TO 765
ILCS 205/2, AS AMENDED. A PLAN THAT MEETS THE REQUIREMENTS

PINs: 02-29-101-003
02-29-101-007

RECORDER’S CERTIFICATE

STATE OF ILLINOIS )
)S.S.
COUNTY OF KENDALL)

THIS INSTRUMENT NO. WAS FILED FOR RECORD
IN THE RECORDER’S OFFICE OF KENDALL COUNTY, ILLINOIS. ON THIS _______ DAY OF
, 20 AT O'CLOCK ___.M.

WE, , REGISTERED PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER AND ,
OWNER (OR HIS ATTORNEY) SUBMIT THE TOPOGRAPHICAL AND PROFILE STUDIES AND, TO THE BEST
OF OUR KNOWLEDGE AND BELIEF THE DRAINAGE OF SURFACE WATERS WILL NOT BE CHANGED BY
THE CONSTRUCTION OF THIS SUBDIVISION OR ANY PART THEREOF, OR, THAT IF SUCH SURFACE
WATER DRAINAGE WILL BE CHANGED, REASONABLE PROVISIONS HAVE BEEN MADE FOR THE

SURVEYOR’S CERTIFICATE

STATE OF ILLINOIS )
)S.S.
COUNTY OF KANE )

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT |, BERNARD J. BAUER, ILLINOIS PROFESSIONAL LAND SURVEYOR NO.

REVISION DESCRIPTION

BY

08/23/23| BJB |PER EEI COMMENTS DATED 08/03/23

lllinois Professional Design Firm # 184-001322

(N
(1
N

HRGreen

CONTAINED IN THE DEPARTMENT'S "POLICY ON PERMITS FOR ACCESS
; 035-003799, AT THE REQUEST OF THE OWNER(S) THEREOF, HAVE SURVEYED, SUBDIVIDED AND Z
l , CITY ENGINEER FOR THE UNITED DRIVEWAYS TO STATE HIGHWAYS™ WILL BE REQUIRED BY THE DEPARTMENT. PLATTED THE FOLLOWING DESCRIBED PROPERTY: @)
CITY OF YORKVILLE, DO HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THE REQUIRED IMPROVEMENTS ~
TY CLERK’'S CERTIFI HAVE BEEN INSTALLED OR THE REQUIRED GUARANTEE COLLATERAL HAS BEEN THIS DAY oF » AD. 20 LOT 4 AND LOT 5 IN KENDALL MARKETPLACE SUBDIVISION, BEING A SUBDIVISION OF PART OF Z, N
POSTED FOR THE COMPLETION OF ALL REQUIRED IMPROVEMENTS. SECTIONS 19, 20 AND 29, TOWNSHIP 37 NORTH, RANGE 7 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL o K=
STATE OF ILLINOIS ) MERIDIAN, RECORDED MAY 7, 2007 AS DOCUMENT NUMBER 200700014779 IN THE UNITED CITY = O =
) ss DATED AT YORKVILLE, ILLINOIS THIS _____ __ DAY OF , 20 VASO0D AFNAD B E. REGION 3 ENGINEER OF YORKVILLE, KENDALL COUNTY, ILLINOIS. 2, = Z
COUNTY OF KENDALL) EXCEPTING THEREFROM THAT PART OF LOT 5 CONVEYED TO THE PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF > 0
/ COUNTY CLERK OF KENDALL COUNTY. ILLINGIS. DO HEREGY ILLINOIS, DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION BY WARRANTY DEED RECORDED JANUARY 30, 2017 E & M
CERTIFY THAT THERE ARE NO DELINQUENT GENERAL TAXES, NO UNPAID CURRENT TAXES, NO UNPAID AS DOCUMENT NUMBER 201700001779, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: m = 5
FORFEITED TAXES, AND NO REDEEMABLE TAX SALES AGAINST ANY OF THE LAND INCLUDED IN THE ST ENGINEER
L 0 PR T s ST T T e i O 07 1 0 2 oL ke sccomons 1o me pur seeoes ae [ 5 B3 2
CONNECTION WITH THE PLAT HEREIN DRAWN. , 7p)
FOLLOWS, USING BEARINGS AND DISTANCES REFERENCED TO THE ILLINOIS STATE PLANE o M
COORDINATE SYSTEM, EAST ZONE (NAD 83, 2011 ADJ ) COMMENCING AT THE SOUTHWEST
GIVEN UNDER MY HAND AND SEAL OF ThE COUNTY CLERK AT YORKVILLE, CORNER OF SAID LOT 5, THENCE SOUTH 85 DEGREES 32 MINUTES 16 SECONDS EAST 148.84 RN
LLINOIS. THIS DAY OF 20 FEET ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID LOT 5 TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING, THENCE NORTH 84 <
’ DEGREES 56 MINUTES 58 SECONDS EAST 25.35 FEET, THENCE SOUTH 85 DEGREES 30 MINUTES o9
38 SECONDS EAST 175.00 FEET, THENCE SOUTH 76 DEGREES 12 MINUTES 34 SECONDS EAST o = 10
T ABROGATION APPR 25.33 FEET TO THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID LOT 1, THENCE NORTH 85 DEGREES 32 MINUTES 16
SECONDS WEST 225.00 FEET ALONG THE SOUTH LINES OF LOTS 1 AND 5 TO THE POINT OF
THE APPROVING AUTHORITIES ON SIGNING THIS DOCUMENT HEREBY BEGINNING, SITUATED IN THE UNITED CITY OF YORKVILLE, KENDALL COUNTY, STATE OF ILLINOIS. -
COUNTY CLERK RELEASE AND CONSENT TO THE RELEASE, VACATION, AND ABROGATION ﬁ j Z,
OF THE EASEMENTS AS SHOWN HEREON. | FURTHER CERTIFY THAT THE PLAT HEREON DRAWN IS A CORRECT AND ACCURATE = <
REPRESENTATION OF SAID SURVEY AND SUBDIVISION. ALL DISTANCES ARE SHOWN IN U.S. =)
SURVEY FEET AND DECIMAL PARTS THEREOF. - 'z
KENDALL COUNTY RIGHT TO FARM STATEMENT ACCEPTED: DATE: < [ <
NOTICE: AT&T | FURTHER CERTIFY THAT NO PART OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED PROPERTY IS LOCATED WITHIN A Z, »
KENDALL COUNTY HAS A LONG, RICH TRADITION IN AGRICULTURE AND RESPECTS THE ROLE THAT SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD AREA AS IDENTIFIED BY THE FEDERAL EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT - 0P,
FARMING CONTINUES TO PLAY IN SHAPING THE ECONOMIC VIABILITY OF THE COUNTY. PROPERTY AGENCY BASED ON FIRM MAP NO. 17093C0037H, BEARING AN EFFECTIVE DATE OF JANUARY 8, 3 E—
THAT SUPPORTS THIS INDUSTRY IS INDICATED BY A ZONING INDICATOR — A—1 OR AG SPECIAL USE. 2014. ALL OF THE PROPERTY IS LOCATED IN ZONE "X" (UNSHADED), AREAS DETERMINED TO BE
ANYONE CONSTRUCTING A RESIDENCE OR FACILITY NEAR THIS ZONING SHOULD BE AWARE THAT ACCEPTED: DATE: OUTSIDE OF THE 0.2% ANNUAL CHANCE FLOODPLAIN. -
NORMAL AGRICULTURAL PRACTICES MAY RESULT IN OCCASIONAL SMELLS, DUST, SIGHTS, NOISE, AND T OWONWERL T EDISoN ; —

UNIQUE HOURS OF OPERATION THAT ARE NOT TYPICAL IN OTHER ZONING AREAS.

ACCEPTED: DATE:
NICOR COMPANY

| FURTHER CERTIFY THAT | HAVE SET ALL EXTERIOR SUBDIVISION MONUMENTS AND DESCRIBED
THEM ON THIS FINAL PLAT, AND THAT ALL INTERIOR MONUMENTS SHALL BE SET AS REQUIRED

BY STATUTE (ILLINOIS REVISED STATUTES 1989, CHAPTER 109 SECTION 1).

| FURTHER CERTIFY THAT THE PROPERTY SHOWN ON THE PLAT HEREON DRAWN IS SITUATED
WITHIN THE CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE UNITED CITY OF YORKVILLE, ILLINOIS, WHICH IS
EXERCISING THE SPECIAL POWERS AUTHORIZED BY DIVISION 12 OF ARTICLE 11 OF THE ILLINOIS
MUNICIPAL CODE AS AMENDED.

BAR IS ONE INCH ON
OFFICIAL DRAWINGS

0 I "

IF NOT ONE INCH,
ADJUST SCALE ACCORDINGLY

ACCEPTED: DATE:
COMCAST
GIVEN UNDER MY HAND AND SEAL AT AURORA, ILLINOIS, THIS ___ DAY OF _______, 20__. DRAWN BY: BJB
APPROVED: MD
JOB DATE: 07/20/2023
ACCEPTED: DATE: JOB NO: 2302275
VETRONET FOR REVIEW
SHEET

BERNARD J. BAUER, P.L.S. (bbauer@hrgreen.com)
ILLINOIS PROFESSIONAL LAND SURVEYOR, NO. 035—003799
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=~ 2363 Sequoia Drive | Suite 101
I—-l-%J Aurora, IL 60506
Main 630.553.7560 + Fax 713.965.0044

HRGreen.

August 31, 2023

Ms. Krysti Barksdale-Noble
Community Development Director
United City of Yorkville

651 Prairie Pointe Drive

Yorkville, IL 60560

RE: Kendall Marketplace Commercial — Lots 4 and 5 (Review No.1)
Dear Ms. Barksdale-Noble

Please see below our responses to the YO2330-DR Kendall Marketplace dated August 3, 2023.
Response to the comment is shown in bold following the original comment.

General Comment:

1.  The location of the two (2) concrete monuments that will be set need to be shown.
RESPONSE: Proposed locations of concrete monuments added, as requested.

2. The access note needs to be revised to state, “There shall be no direct access fromlots 1, 2, and 3
toU.S Rt. 34”.

RESPONSE: Revised, as requested

3 The revised paragraph below should be used on the ownership certificate:

The undersigned hereby dedicates for public use the lands indicated on this plat as thoroughfares,

streets, alleys, and public services; and hereby also reserves for any electric, gas, telephone, cable tv
or other telecommunications company under franchise agreement with the United City of Yorkville,

their successors and assigns, the easement provisions which are stated hereon.

RESPONSE: Revised, as requested

If you have any questions or need additional information, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Sincerely,
HR GREEN, INC.

D/%//%é/\

avid Schultz, P.E. LEED AP
Project Manager

DS/cl

\\hrgreen.com\HRG\Data\2023\2302275\Corr\ltr-083123_2302275_Y02330-KMP-Lots4-5-Review_No.1-Review_Comment_ Response.docx



Engineering Enterprises, Inc.

September 7, 2023

Ms. Krysti Barksdale-Noble
Community Development Director
United City of Yorkville

651 Prairie Pointe Drive

Yorkville, [L 60560

Re: Kendall Marketplace Commercial-Lots 4 and 5
United City of Yorhkville

Dear Krysti:
We have reviewed the Final Plat of Resubdivision and have found it to be acceptable.

If you have any questions or require additional information, please contact our office.

Respectfully Submitted,
ENGINEERING ENTERPRISES, INC.

radley P. Sanderson, P.E.
Chief Operating Officer / President

BPS

pc: Mr. Bart Olson, City Administrator (via email)
Ms. Erin Willrett, Assistant City Administrator (via email)
Mr. Eric Dhuse, Director of Public Works (via email)
Mr. Pete Ratos, Building Department (via email)
Ms. Dee Weinert, Admin Assistant (via email)
Ms. Jori Behland, City Clerk (via email)
Mr. Dave Schultz, HR Green (via email)
MGS, PGW2, EEI (Via e-mail)

\\Milkyway\EEI_Storage\Docs\Public\Yorkville\2023\Y02330-DR Kendall Marketplace Commercial-Lots 4 and 5\Docs\lcoy_Review02.doc

52 Wheeler Road * Sugar Grove, IL 60554 - Tel: 630.466.6700 * Fax: 630.466.6701 - www.eelweb.com




Memorandum

To: Planning and Zoning Commission
From: Krysti J. Barksdale-Noble, Community Development Director
CC: Bart Olson, City Administrator

Date: September 28, 2023
Subject: PZC 2023-30 — 6145 Whitetail Ridge Drive (Whitetail Ridge)
1.5 Mile Review (Plat of Vacation)

SUMMARY:

Staff has reviewed a request from Kendall County Planning and Zoning Department along with the
subsequent documents attached. This property is located within one and a half miles of the planning
boundary for Yorkville, allowing the City the opportunity to review and provide comments to Kendall
County. The petitioners, Michael R. and Darla J. Cappellett, are requesting approval of a Plat of Vacation
to vacate the public easements between two (2) parcels (Lots 65 and 66) within the Whitetail Ridge
subdivision. The purpose of the request is to construct an addition to the existing single detached home in
an area of an existing easement. The real property is located at 6145 Whitetail Ridge Drive which is
generally located at the north of the East Schoolhouse Road (IL Route 126) between Grove Road and
Hopkins Road in unincorporated Kendall County.

PROPERTY BACKGROUND:

The property is located at 6145 Whitetail Ridge
Drive in unincorporate Kendall County. The
approximately 1.5-acre property, original platted
as two (2) separate parcels each totaling ~33,000
sq. ft., was consolidated into a single parcel in
2020. Currently, the property is improved with a
one-story approximately 4,300 square foot home
and in-ground pool on Lot 65. While the parcel is
not immediately adjacent to incorporated
Yorkville, it is approximatelyl.5 miles to the east
of the Prestwick of Ashley Pointe subdivision.

REQUEST SUMMARY:

The petitioners are proposing to vacate the existing
combined ten (10) foot drainage and utility
easements between Lots 65 and 66 within the
Whitetail Ridge for the purpose of constructing an
addition to the existing single-family detached home within the center of the recently consolidated parcel.
As proposed, the addition would straddle across the drainage easement which is not permitted per Kendall
County subdivision regulations. No other zoning relief is being requested by the petitioners. The County
has reached out to the various public utility providers in the area (AT&T, ComEd, Comcast, and
Nicor/Southern Co.). None of these providers objected to the request to vacate. Additionally, the Whitetail
Ridge Homeowners Association (HOA) was not opposed to the request to vacate the easement.




PLAT OF VACATION OF EASEMENT
LOTS 65 AND 66 WHITETAIL RIDGE SUBDMSION
KENDALL AND NA-AU-SAY TOWNSHIPS KENDALL COUNTY LLINOIS N
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PROPERTY LOCATION:

PIN  05-12-226-0163
S i
LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF EASEMENT TO BE VACATED: ” -

Tne Weaterly 5.0 feet of Lot 65 (except the Nortnerly 10,0 fest
—an,
of Lot 66 (sucept the Nortnerly 10.0 fest and the Southerly
15,0 fast thereof) il In Whitetail Ridge Subclsision m Kendall
and Na—Au—Say Townships, occording to the Plat thereof
recorded June 9, 2005 as' Document No. 200500015885

PRESENT  ZONING:
A1

FLOCDPLAIN STATEMENT:

Tne Subjsct property Is located in Zone X
(areas of minimal ficed hazerd determined to
be cutside the 0.2% onnual chance floadplain)
as shawn on FEMA Fload Insurance Rate Map
Panel No. 17093CQ130H with an effective date
I, Phillip D. Young, an lllincis Professional Land Surveyor ond en officer of Phillip D. Young ond Asscciotes, Inc., of January 8, 2014

state that | hove surveyed ond located tre visible improvements upon the abave described troct os_shown by the

plot hereon drawn which is o representotion of said survey. Fleld work was completed Octooer 1, 2020. This

professional service anforms fo the current Hincis minimum standard for o boundary survey. WETLANDS STATEMENT:

State of llinois

County of Kendall )

The Nationol Wetlands lventory Mep daes not
Doted September 19, 2023 at Yorkville, llinois depict any weticnds on the Subject Property.

p 0 Toung
llinois Professional Land Surveyor No. I (Expires 11/33/24)

September 19, 2023

JOB NO. 23118 HIH 1 11078 South Bridge Strest
08 NANE o Phillip D. Young and Associates, Inc. gt
DWG FILE 231188 LAND SURVEYING - TOPOGRAPHIC MAPPING - Lic.#184-002775 Telephone (530)5?3—1580

YORKVILLE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN:

Yorkville’s 2016 Comprehensive Plan designation for this property is Estate/Conservation Residential. This
future land use is intended to provide flexibility for residential design in areas in Yorkville that can
accommodate low-density detached single-family housing but also include sensitive environmental and
scenic features that should be retained and enhanced.

The current land use within a large lot residential golf course development and the proposed detached
single-family home on a 1.5-acre lot is consistent with Yorkville’s Comprehensive Plan land use

designation for this property. If approved, the proposed plat of vacation does not alter the land use and
maintains its consistency with the areas future land use plans.



STAFF COMMENTS

Staff has reviewed the request for easement vacation and does not oppose the request. It will not affect any
public utilities or drainage within the planned development and meets the current minimum bulk
requirements of that district. Additionally, the land use is consistent with the City’s Comprehensive Plan
and the vacation of the drainage and utility easements will not affect the future use of the land, as it will
remain residential in nature.

Staff is seeking input from the Planning and Zoning Commission as the one-and-a-half-mile review allows
for the City to make comments and requests to the petitioner and County prior to their public meetings.
This review will also be brought to the City Council at the October 24, 2023 meeting. This item was
delivered to the City on September 21, 2023.

PROPOSED MOTION

In consideration of the proposed mile and one-half review of Kendall County Petition 23-30 for a plat of
vacation to vacate the public easements between two (2) parcels (Lots 65 and 66) within the Whitetail
Ridge subdivision commonly known as 6145 Whitetail Ridge Drive, the Planning and Zoning
Commission recommends to the City Council to (object or not to object) to the request.

ATTACHMENTS
1. Application with Attachments




INTRODUCTION

DEPARTMENT OF PLANNING, BUILDING & ZONING
111 West Fox Street ¢ Room 203
Yorkville, IL e 60560
(630) 553-4141 Fax (630) 553-4179

Petition 23-30
Michael R. and Darla J. Cappellett
Plat of Vacation of a Drainage and Utility Easement
in Whitetail Ridge Subdivision

A ten foot (10’) drainage and utility easement presently exists between Lots 65 and 66 in Whitetail Ridge
Subdivision. Michael and Darla Cappellett own the subject lots and would like to construct an addition to the

home in the area of the existing easement.

The Petitioners previously combined the lots into one (1) parcel identification number.

SITE INFORMATION
PETITIONER

ADDRESS

LOCATION

Michael R. and Darla J. Cappellett
6145 Whitetail Ridge Drive, Yorkville (Lots 65 and 66 of Whitetail Ridge)

North of the Intersection of Clubhouse Drive and Whitetail Ridge Drive

TOWNSHIP Kendall Township

PARCEL # 05-12-226-013

LOT SIZE 1.5 +/- Acres

ZPAC Memo - Prepared by Matt Asselmeier — September 21, 2023 Page 1 of 3



EXISTING LAND One-Family Residential/Vacant
USE

ZONING RPD-2

LRMP | Current One-Family Residential and Vacant

Land Use
Future Rural Residential (Max 0.65 Du/Acre)
Land Use
Roads Whitetail Ridge Drive is a Township Road classified as a Local Road
Trails None
Floodplain/ | None
Wetlands

REQL'JA\ECSTT(EB Vacate a Ten Foot (10’) Drainage and Utility Easement Between Lots 65 and 66

APPLICABLE Section 7.06 (Subdivision Control Ordinance)
REGULATIONS

SURROUNDING LAND USE

Location Adjacent Land Use Adjacent Land Resource Zoning within %
Zoning Management Plan Mile
North Wooded A-1 Rural Residential N/A
(Max 0.65 DU/Acre)

South Single-Family RPD-2 Rural Residential N/A
Residential

East Single-Family RPD-2 Rural Residential N/A
Residential

West Single-Family RPD-2 Rural Residential N/A
Residential

ACTION SUMMARY
KENDALL TOWNSHIP
Kendall Township was emailed information on September 21, 2023.

UNITED CITY OF YORKVILLE
The United City of Yorkville was emailed information on September 21, 2023.

BRISTOL-KENDALL FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
The Bristol-Kendall Fire Protection District was emailed information on September 21, 2023.

GENERAL
The application materials are included as Attachment 1. The plat for this area of Whitetail Ridge is included as
Attachment 2. The plat of vacation is included as Attachment 3.

Petition information was sent to WBK on September 21, 2023.

On September 19, 2023, a representative from the Whitetail Ridge Homeowners’ Association submitted an
email stating the HOA was agreeable to the requested vacation. This email is included as Attachment 4.

ZPAC Memo - Prepared by Matt Asselmeier — September 21, 2023 Page 2 of 3




As of the date of this memo, the Petitioner has not contacted any of the utility companies directly. Emails from
Comed, NICOR, Comcast, and AT&T are included as Attachments 5, 6, 7, and 8 respectively.

RECOMMENDATION
Staff would like to receive comments from the various utilities and WBK Engineering before issuing a
recommendation.

ATTACHMENTS

Application Materials

Plat of Whitetail Ridge (The Subject Property Area Only)

Plat of Vacation

September 19, 2023, Whitetail Ridge Homeowners’ Association Email
September 19, 2023, Comed Email

September 19, 2023, NICOR Email

September 19, 2023, Comcast Email

September 21, 2023, AT&T Email

ONoO~WNE

ZPAC Memo - Prepared by Matt Asselmeier — September 21, 2023 Page 3 0of 3



Attachment 1, Page 1

DEPARTMENT OF PLANNING, BUILDING & ZONING
111 West Fox Street » Yorkville, IL « 60560

(630) 553-4141 Fax (630) 553-4179
APPLICATION
PROJECT NAME FILE #:

NAME OF APPLICANT (Including First, Middle Initial, and Last Name)

m i@hﬁﬁo& ngmagi\d Davlz 3. Cappelled
Miehgel ond Davla J. Eﬂa@ s

-

SITE INFORMATION ' SITE ADDRESS OR LOCATION ASSESSOR'S ID NUMBER (PiN)
ACRES
U)h VH’&L@ EldaQ D(L B 0S-[2- 226-013-0004
STING LAND USE CURRENT ZONING LAND CLASSIFICATION ON LRMP
ééS\ denkad.  ResdenPal

REQUESTED ACTION (Check All That Apply):

SPECIAL USE ___ MAP AMENDMENT (Rezoneto ___) ___VARIANCE
ADMINISTRATIVE VARIANCE ~ ___ A-1 CONDITIONAL USE for: ___SITE PLAN REVIEW
___ TEXT AMENDMENT ___RPD(__Concept; _Preliminary; __Final) ___ ADMINISTRATIVE APPEAL
~__ PRELIMINARY PLAT T FINAL PLAT X_ OTHER PLAT (Vacation, Dedication, etc.)

__ AMENDMENT TO A SPECIAL USE

PRIMARY CONTAC PRI
Dar lo. Usppelled-
PRIMARY CONTACT PHONE # PRIMARY CONTACT FAX #

ENGINEER MAILING ADDRESS ENGINEER EMAIL

T@&We lleH

ENGlNEER PHONE # ENGINEER FAX #

ENGINEER CON

| UNDERSTAND THAT BY SIGNING THIS FORM, THAT THE PROPERTY IN QUESTION MAY BE VISITED BY
COUNTY STAFF & BOARD/ COMMISSION MEMBERS THROUGHOUT THE PETITION PROCESS AND THAT
THE PRIMARY CONTACT LISTED ABOVE WILL BE SUBJECT TO ALL CORRESPONDANCE ISSUED BY
THE COUNTY.

| CERTIFY THAT THE INFORMATION AND EXHIBITS SUBMITTED ARE TRUE AND CORRECT TO THE
BEST OF MY KNOWLEDGE AND THAT | AM TO FILE THIS APPLICATION AND ACT ON BEHALF OF THE
ABOVE SIGNATURES. THE APPLICANT ATTESTS THAT THEY ARE FREE OF DEBT OR CURRENT ON
ALL DEBTS OWED TO KENDALL COUNTY AS OF THE DATE OF THE APPLICATION.

SIG

D

4?73(/43

FEE PAID:$
CHECK #:

, "Primary Contact will receive all correspondence from County
Engineering Contact will receive all correspondence from the County’s Engineering Consultants

Date Stamp Here If
Checklist Is Complete



Attachment 1, Page 2

202300009192

DEBBIE GILLETTE
RECORDER - KENDALL COUNTY, IL
RECORDED: 8/16/2023 11:59 AM

W
ARRANTY DEED REC FEE: 57.00 RHSPS: 19.00
COUNTY TAX: 457.50
PAGES: 2
FIDELITY NATIONAL
TITLE INSURANCE

G Lvd e

THE GRANTOR(S
husband and wife, of & e —
valuzble consideration in hand paid, CONVEY and WARRANT to Michael K. Cappelett

Jett. husband and wife, whose address is (GRANTEE’S ADDRESS):

not as tenants in common nor as joint tenants, but as Tenants by the Entirety, all interest in the
following described Real Estate situated in the County of Kendall, in the State of Illinois, to wit:

, Mark W. Nichols and Lola A. Nichols, a/k/a Mark Nichols and Lola Nichols,
i ammaeni 07 200d and
and Darla J.

LOTS 65 AND 66 IN WHITETAIL RIDGE SUBDIVISION, A SUBDIVISION OF PART OF
SECTION 12, TOWNSHIP 36, RANGE 7 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN,
PART OF SECTION 7, TOWNSHIP 36, RANGE 8 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL
MERIDIAN, AND PART OF THE FORMER WAISH-KEE-SHAW RESERVATION IN
KENDALL AND NA-AU-SAY TOWNSHIPS, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF
RECORDED JUNE 9, 2005 AS DOCUMENT NUMBER 2005015985 AND CERTIFICATE
OF CORRECTION RECORDED AS DOCUMENT NUMBER 2005019833, IN KENDALL
COUNTY, ILLINOIS.

SUBJECT TO: Covenants, conditions and restrictions of record, public and utility easements, and roads and
highways, special government taxes or assessments for improvements not yet completed, unconfirmed special
government taxes or assessments, general real estate taxes for the year 2022 (second installment only) and
subsequent years including taxes which may accrue by reason of new or additional improvements during the
vear 2022 and thereafter.

Hereby releasing and waiving all rights under and by virtue of the Homestead Exemption Laws of the State of
Illincis.

Permanent Index Number(s): 05-12-226-013

Property Address(es): 6145 Whitetail Ridge Drive, Yorkville, Hlinois 60560



Attachment 1, Page 3

WARRANTY DEED
ILLINGIS STATUTORY

THE GRANTG [ 2 Nichols 2 ola A. Nichols, a/k/a Mark Nichols and Lola Nich

hushand and wife, of or good and
valuable consideration in hand paid, CONVEY and 0 IVLIC . and Darla J.

Cappellett, husband and wife, whose address is (GRANTEE’S ADDRE SS)
hot as tenants in common nor as joint tenants, but as Tenants by the Entirety, all interest in the
following described Real Estate situated in the County of Kendall, in the State ot f Illinois, to wit:

LOTS 65 AND 66 IN WHITETAIL RIDGE SUBDIVI."EON, A SUBDIVISION OF PART OF
SECTION 12, TOWNSHIP 36, RANGE 7 EAST © F THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN,
PART OF SECTION 7, TOWNSHIP 36, RANGE 8 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL
MERIDIAN, AND PART OF THE FORMER WAISH-KEE-SHAW RESERVATION IN
KENDALL AND NA-AU-SAY TOWNSHIPS, AbCORDINC TO THE PLAT THEREOF
RECORDED JUNE 9, 2005 AS DOCUMENT NUMBER 2605615985 AND CERTIFICATE

OF CORRECTION RECORDED AS DOCUME ENT NUMBER 2005019833, IN KENDALL
COUNTY, ILLINOIS.

SURIECT TO: Covenants, cond ditions and restrictions of record, public and utility easements, and roads and
highways, special government taxes or assessments for improvements not y\.t completed, unconi irmed spec:

EnWays,

government taxes or assessments, general real estate taxes for the year 2022 (second insta aliment o'ww) and
snoseq“eﬂt years inciuding taxes \Vhluh may accrue by reason of new or adc*tional improvements during the

year 2022 and thereafter.

N
o

.
&l

Hereby releasing and waiving 2 ail rights under and by virtue of the Homestead Exemption Laws of the State of
7”"1(1:5

Permanent Index Number(s): 05-12-226-013

Property Address(es): 4145 Whitetail Ridge Drive, Yorkvilie, Hlinois 60560



Attachment 1, Page 4

Dated this z day of August 2023.

(Seal)
Mark W. Nichols Lola A. Nichols !

. (Seal)

STATE OF ILLINOIS )
) SS
COUNTY OF KENDALL )

i, the undersigned, a Notary Public in and for said County, in the State aforesaid, CERTIFY THAT Mark W.

i

Nichols and Lola A. Nichols, personally known to me to be the same persons whose names are subscribed to

the forgoing instrument, appeared before me this day in person, and acknowledged that they signed, sealed and
delivered the instrument as their free and voluntary act, for the uses and purposes therein set forth, including the

release and waiver of the right of homestead.

7

day of August 2023.

Given under my hand and notarial seal, on the

x ., \N\AAW__ c da"‘

OFFCIALS SEAL J
R ECDR‘! R QCZ LEY )
s 2UBLIC, STATE OF ILLINCIS L(
ission Sxpires 10/13/24 &

LG W e "

Prepaved by:

The Law Office of Gregory R. Schiey
1360 Golfview Street

Aurora, Illinois 60506

Muail to:

Name and Address of Taxpayer: < -~ .=
Michael R. Cappellett and Darla J. C appell
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Attachment 4

Matt Asselmeier

From: Debbie Mika

Sent: Tuesday, September 19, 2023 3:37 PM
To: Matt Asselmeier

Subject: [External]Re: 6145 Whitetail Ridge Drive

CAUTION - This email originated from outside the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless
you recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

No, but again thanks for checking in!

Debbie Mika, President
Whitetail Ridge HOA

From: Matt Asselmeier <masselmeier@kendallcountyil.gov>

Sent: Tuesday, September 19, 2023 3:01:08 PM
Tor Debbie Mika [N

Subject: 6145 Whitetail Ridge Drive
Debbie:

The County received a request from Michael and Darla Cappellett to vacate a public utility and drainage easement
between Lots 65 and 66 in Whitetail Ridge in order to be able to construct an addition to the existing house on the
property.

Does the HOA have any objections to this vacation?
Thanks,

Matthew H. Asselmeier, AICP, CFM
Director

Kendall County Planning, Building & Zoning
111 West Fox Street

Yorkville, IL 60560-1498

PH: 630-553-4139

Fax: 630-553-4179



Attachment 5

Matt Asselmeier

From: Bouska, Gerald G:(ComEd) <Gerald.Bouska@ComEd.com>
Sent: Tuesday, September 19, 2023 12:07 PM

To: Matt Asselmeier

Subject: RE: [EXTERNAL]6145 Whitetail Ridge Drive, Yorkville
Matthew,

If someone is requesting to vacate an easement | would need ComEd engineering to review their request and verify we
don’t have existing facilities within the easement area and no future need for it. If approved by engineering | can sign off
on their vacation document.

Thanks,

Jerry Bouska

Senior Real Estate Representative
Real Estate & Facilities

Three Lincoln Centre, 4" Floor
Qakbrook Terrace, |IL 60181
gerald.bouska@comed.com

T 779 231 2254

i comed’

AN EXELON COMPANY

comed.com

From: Matt Asselmeier <masselmeier@kendallcountyil.gov>
Sent: Tuesday, September 19, 2023 11:15 AM

To: Bouska, Gerald G:(ComEd) <Gerald.Bouska@ComEd.com>
Subject: [EXTERNAL]}6145 Whitetail Ridge Drive, Yorkville

You don't often get email from masselmeier@kendalicountyil.gov. Learn why this is important

EXTERNAL MAIL. Do not click links or open attachments from unknown senders or unexpected Email.

Gerald:

Kendall County received a request to vacate the drainage and utility easements along the common property lines of lots
65 and 66 in Whitetail Ridge subdivision, excluding the easements along the northern and southern boundaries of the

properties.



Attachment 6

Matt Asselmeier

From: Luginbill, Rebecca <X2RLUGIN@SOUTHERNCO.COM>
Sent: Tuesday, September 19, 2023 12:15 PM

To: Matt Asselmeier

Subject: RE: [External]RE: 6145 Whitetail Ridge Drive, Yorkville
Attachments: Plat of Vacation.pdf

Matt -

| have reviewed and approve of vacating the 5’ utility easement as shown on the attached/below plat related to LOTS 65 and 66.
If you need the Plat of Vacation signed, please schedule a date and time to either come into our office to have the originals executed
or you can overnight to the below address, including a return slip and we will send back appropriately.

Attn: 6% Floor Land Dept,
1844 Ferry Rd., Naperville IL

NOTE: | am not in the office daily - a scheduled appointment is necessary if you want to avoid delays in signature.




Attachment 7

Matt Asselmeier

From: Wyman, Ted <Ted_Wyman@comcast.com>
Sent: Wednesday, September 20, 2023 9:36 AM

To: Matt Asselmeier

Subject: [External]RE: 6145 Whitetail Ridge Drive, Yorkville

CAUTION - This email originated from outside the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless
you recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

Matt,

Comcast has no cable facilities within the easement proposed to be vacated between Lots 65 & 66, as part of the
Whitetail Ridge Subdivision, and therefore has no objection to the vacation of said easement.

If you have any questions in regards to this information, please don’t hesitate to contact me.

Sincerely,

Ted Wyman

Comcast Cable

Right-of-Way Engineer

688 Industrial Drive

Elmhurst, IL 60126

Phone: (224) 229-5850 office (847) 652-6074 cell
Fax: (630) 359-5482

Ted Wyman@comcast.com

From: Matt Asselmeier <masselmeier@kendallcountyil.gov>
Sent: Wednesday, September 20, 2023 9:14 AM

To: Wyman, Ted <Ted_Wyman@comcast.com>

Subject: [EXTERNAL] RE: 6145 Whitetail Ridge Drive, Yorkville

See attached.

Matthew H. Asselmeier, AICP, CFM
Director

Kendall County Planning, Building & Zoning
111 West Fox Street

Yorkville, IL 60560-1498

PH: 630-553-4139

Fax: 630-553-4179

From: Matt Asselmeier

Sent: Tuesday, September 19, 2023 11:16 AM
To: Ted Wyman@comcast.com

Subject: 6145 Whitetail Ridge Drive, Yorkville



Attachment 8
Matt Asselmeier

From: TAFOYA, JILL <jg1423@att.com>

Sent: Thursday, September 21, 2023 9:00 AM

To: Matt Asselmeier

Subject: RE: [External]RE: 6145 Whitetail Ridge Drive, Yorkville
Hi Matt,

AT&T has no objection to your request for vacation of the utility easements along the common property lines of lots 65
and 66 in Whitetail Ridge subdivision.

Let me know when you have a vacation document for signature.
Thanks,
Jill

From: Matt Asselmeier <masselmeier@kendallcountyil.gov>
Sent: Thursday, September 21, 2023 8:01 AM

To: TAFOYA, JILL <jg1423@att.com>

Subject: RE: [External]RE: 6145 Whitetail Ridge Drive, Yorkville

See attached

Matthew H. Asseimeier, AICP, CFM
Director

Kendall County Planning, Building & Zoning
111 West Fox Street

Yorkville, IL 60560-1498

PH: 630-553-4139

Fax: 630-553-4179

From: TAFOYA, JILL <jgl423 @att.com>

Sent: Thursday, September 21, 2023 7:01 AM

To: Matt Asselmeier <masselmeier@kendallcountyil.gov>
Subject: [External]RE: 6145 Whitetail Ridge Drive, Yorkville

CAUTION - This email originated from outside the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless
you recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

Good Morning Matt,
Can you please send me the PLATS for these lots?
Thanks,

Jill
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